



User requirements

D1.1: User requirements for USER-CHI solutions.

Date: **21/10/2020** Author(s): **Juan F. Giménez, Amparo López, Carol Soriano** Co-author(s): **Christian Seidel**



This project has received funding from the European Union's Horizon 2020 research and innovation programme under grant agroiment No (875187)



Deliverable details

Project number	Project acronym	Project title
875187	USER-CHI	innovative solutions for USER centric CHarging Infrastructure

Title	WP	Version
User requirements for USER-CHI solutions	1	1

Contractual delivery date	Actual delivery date	Delivery type*
31/10/2020	31/10/2020	R

*Delivery type: **R**: Document, report; **DEM**: Demonstrator, pilot, prototype; **DEC**: Websites, patent fillings, videos, etc; **OTHER**; **ETHICS**: Ethics requirement; **ORDP**: Open Research Data Pilot.

Author(s)	Organisation
Juan F. Giménez	IBV
Amparo López	IBV
Carol Soriano	IBV
Christian Seidel	VMZ



Document history

Version	Date	Person	Action	Status*	Dissemination level**
V0.1	28.10.2020	Juan F. Giménez	Quantitative research, Qualitative research, Co- creation	Draft	CO
V0.2	28.10.2020	Christian Seidel	Content Big Data Analysis added	Draft	СО
V0.3	03.12.202	Juan F. Giménez	Reports of Delphi's results and Field Diary results are moved from Annexes section to Results section	Draft	CO

V1		Approved	PU

*Status: Draft, Final, Approved, Submitted (to European Commission).

Dissemination Level: **PU: Public; **CO**: Confidential, only for members of the consortium (including the Commission Services); **EU-RES** Classified Information - restraint UE; **EU-CON**: Classified Information - confidential UE; **EU-SEC**: Classified Information - secret UE

Abstract

USER-CHI project is a user centric project aimed at developing new solutions for fostering the electric mobility all around European Union. As user centric, the project includes a user research task, focused on identifying key points and critical factors to develop the project products. This research tasks has basically included two type of duties: research activities involving intermediate and end users focused on collecting qualitative data and quantitative data, and a big data analysis on the use of charging points in five European cities that are part of USER-CHI consortium. The research work has been negatively influenced by the situation derived from the COVID-19 pandemic disease, what finally result in the delay of the chargers' usage data collection, and consequently the delay of the big data analysis. Anyway, the results obtained in the user research activities and a first analysis of the data collected from cities are presented in this report.



Keywords

Big Data Analysis, Charging Infrastructure Usage, User research, Qualitative research, Quantitative research, Co-creation, Field Diary, Delphi questionnaire, Survey

Copyright statement

The work described in this document has been conducted within the USER-CHI project. This document reflects only the USER-CHI Consortium view and the European Union is not responsible for any use that may be made of the information it contains.

This document and its content are the property of the USER-CHI Consortium. All rights relevant to this document are determined by the applicable laws. Access to this document does not grant any right or license on the document or its contents. This document or its contents are not to be used or treated in any manner inconsistent with the rights or interests of the USER-CHI Consortium or the Partners detriment and are not to be disclosed externally without prior written consent from the USER-CHI Partners.

Each USER-CHI Partner may use this document in conformity with the USER-CHI Consortium Grant Agreement provisions.





Table of contents

1.	Introduction
2.	User research
2.1	Qualitative research
2.2	Quantitative research
2.3	Generating ideas for USER-CHI solutions
3.	Big Data Analysis
3.1	Barcelona Data for the Big Data Analysis
3.2	Berlin Data Set
3.3	Budapest Data Set
3.4	Rome Data Set
3.5	Turku Data Set
3.6	Summary and next steps
4.	Results
4.1	Netnography
4.2	Delphi questionnaire
4.3	Field Diary
4.5	Survey
4.6	Co-creation
5.	Conclusions95
Refere	nces
Annex	es103
Annex	1: Delphi questionnaire
Annex	2: Field Diary
Annex	3: Survey
Annex	4: Netnography results' report
Annex	5: Survey's results report
Annex	6: Co-creation's results report



List of figures

Figure 1: Total amount of EV drivers participating in Netnography, and topics of interest mentioned 12
Figure 2: Forums in Spain (3), Finland (1) and Germany (5) visited for Netnography13
Figure 3: Total amount of LEV riders participating in Netnography, visited forums
Figure 4: Delphi's participants grouped per gender, professional profiles and nationality
Figure 5: Field Diary participants grouped per gender, nationality and uses of EV16
Figure 6: Information sent to workshop participants on 11 th of September19
Figure 7: Users working on USER-CHI products19
Figure 8: Locations of Charging Stations in Barcelona Metropolitan Area
Figure 9: Locations of Charging Stations in Berlin23
Figure 10: Locations of Charging Stations in Budapest25
Figure 11: Locations of Charging Stations in Rome26
Figure 12: Rome: Overlapping charging points (clusters of charging points and single street)
Figure 13: Basic Statistics for the Rome Dataset
Figure 14: Locations of Charging Stations in Turku29
Figure 15: Statistics for the Turku Data Set
Figure 16: Chargers distribution in Norway, Spain and Germany
Figure 17: Chargers per inhabitant in Norway, Spain and Germany
Figure 18: Differences among countries regarding charging infrastructure
Figure 19: Comments about charging infrastructure in Germany
Figure 20: Comments about eScooter in Spain
Figure 21: Urban planners priorities
Figure 22: Estimated amount of charging points in cities
Figure 23: Socket features



Figure 24: Aspects to improve the charging points)
Figure 25: Topics related to fees fixation41	L
Figure 26: Features of the charging system)
Figure 27: Communication protocols	ł
Figure 28: Features of the management system	;
Figure 29: Educational background, Family unit EV experience of Field Diary respondents	1
Figure 30: EV's charging experience	3
Figure 31: Example of App's route monitoring51	Ĺ
Figure 32: Usual charging locations	}
Figure 33: Problems related to charging infrastructure54	ł
Figure 34: Identified improvements for charging infrastructure	5
Figure 35: Distribution of EV drivers' sample	;
Figure 36: Differences of Gender (EV vs ICEV)65	;
Figure 37: Age differences between EV drivers and ICEV drivers	;
Figure 38: Differences in <i>It is my property</i> between EV drivers and ICEV drivers	,
Figure 39: Most used car brands of EVs67	1
Figure 40: Best valued aspects of EVs by EV drivers	3
Figure 41: Worsts valued aspects of EVs by EV drivers)
Figure 42: EV driver purchase intention70)
Figure 43: Predisposition to buy an EV again70)
Figure 44: Most relevant aspects of new charging stations71	Ĺ
Figure 45: Most used sockets per country72	2
Figure 46: Differences between the features they employ actually and the features they are more interested in	?
Figure 47: Places where user usually charge75	;



Figure 48: Locations where users usually charge vs Lack of charging points	76
Figure 49: Activities performed by users while charging	77
Figure 50: Ratings for the charging process per country	78
Figure 51: Best proposals to improve the charging process	79
Figure 52: ICEV brands	80
Figure 53: EV purchase intention (ICEV)	81
Figure 54: Best valued aspects of the electric vehicles (ICEV)	81
Figure 55: Worst valued aspects of the electric vehicles (ICEV)	82
Figure 56: Required improvements for the electric vehicles (ICEV)	83
Figure 57: Age profile of LEV, ICEV and EV drivers	84
Figure 58: Drivers who also are LEV riders	84
Figure 59: Best valued features for LEVs	85
Figure 60: Worst valued features for LEVs	86
Figure 61: Improvements for LEVs	87
Figure 62: INCAR user app and key concepts related to this sketch	88
Figure 63: Station of the future and key concepts related to the sketch	89
Figure 64: INSOC station and keys concepts related to this sketch	90
Figure 65: INDUCAR station and main concepts related to this sketch	90
Figure 66: Assessment's results of product concepts	91
Figure 67: Improvements related to product concepts	92

List of tables

Table 1: Total number of responses collected in the user research's studies	11
Table 2: End user profile per city for Field Diary	15
Table 3: Field Diary participants' description	16



Table 4: Number of survey's respondents per country and user profile	17
Table 5: Barcelona dataset excerpt	22
Table 6: Berlin dataset excerpt	24
Table 7: Budapest dataset excerpt	26
Table 8: Rome dataset excerpt	27
Table 9: Turku dataset excerpt	29
Table 10: Summary Statistics	
Table 11: Most common electric power supplied in charging stations	
Table 12: Type of EV and frequency of use	
Table 13: Netnography most relevant results	60
Table 14: Delphi questionnaire's most relevant results	62
Table 15: Field Diary's most relevant results	63
Table 16: EV's profile	66
Table 17: Satisfaction level per geographical area	68
Table 18: Main differences assessing the EV	69
Table 19: Purchase intention of EV drivers and ICEV drivers	71
Table 20: Most used sockets per geographical area	72
Table 21: Differences among countries in the system main features	73
Table 22: Differences among countries in the features the users are more interested in	73
Table 23: Differences among countries in places where usually charge	75
Table 24: Gender differences related to EV charge	76
Table 25: Differences in the activities performed by men and women	77
Table 26: Apps rating per geographical area	78



1. Introduction

This report presents the work performed by USER-CHI consortium members from February 2020 to October 2020, to define the users' needs and expectations related to project products. These months, covering from M1 and M9 of project planning, were coincident in time with the beginning of the global pandemic disease COVID-19. Although this situation affected some of the planned tasks, the employment of online tools for contacting with end users and intermediate users, allowed us to perform a successful user research, which is presented in the following section. For the Big Data Analysis complementing the user research, the plan had to be changed due to the availability of resources as will be pointed out in *Section 3*.

USER-CHI project is a user centric project aimed at developing new solutions for fostering the electric mobility all around European Union. As user centric, the project includes a user research task, focused on identifying key points and critical factors to develop the project products.

We have followed a basic strategy to perform this task and achieve our objective, consisting of user observation, collection of users' insights, firstly in an open way, secondly in an addressed way, and finally working with end users and intermediate users to generate ideas for developing USER-CHI products.

Observation tasks are described in section 2.1.1, and the results obtained are presented in section 4.1. The observation was performed by visiting EVs online chats, and we collected opinions from six different EU countries.

In users' insights collection, we differentiate between end users (EVs drivers and LEVs riders), and intermediate users (different professionals involved in the value chain of the charging process). The methodology applied for getting intermediate users' opinions regarding the charging process of EVs are presented in section 2.1.2.1, and results in section 4.2. On the other hand, the method to collect end users' perceptions is presented in section 2.1.2.2, and results in section 4.3.

Furthermore, we have performed a big survey involving more than 2,000 thousand users in six different EU countries, which is described in section 2.2. The results obtained in this survey are presented in section 0.

The work performed for generating ideas that overcome identified issues related to USER-CHI products is described in section *2.3*, and results are reported in section *4.6*.

Section 3 gives a first overview on the current status of the Big Data Analysis as a quantitative complement to the analysis with observed behaviour of charging station usage.

In *Section 5* we discuss about how to interpret the results we have obtained in the different tasks related to the user research, and our conclusions regarding this topic are presented.



2. User research

In this section, the different methodologies applied to extract information from users are presented. These methodologies are well known in social research, and are validated methodologies for performing the qualitative research and the quantitative research presented in the DOA document.

		Intermediate Users		End users	
		Professionals & Technicians	EV drivers	ICEV drivers	LEV riders
	Netnography		Germany → 123 Norway → 175 Spain → 212		Spain → 111
Qualitative research	Delphi Questionnaire	Germany \rightarrow 13 Finland \rightarrow 12 Hungary \rightarrow 20 Italy \rightarrow 1 Spain \rightarrow 9 UE country \rightarrow 2			
	Field Diary		Germany → 15 Finland → 12 Hungary → 7 Italy → 14 Spain → 62		Germany → Finland → 9 Hungary → 3 Italy → 5 Spain → 4
Quantitative research	Survey		Germany → 169 Finland → 54 Hungary → 117 Italy → 134 Spain → 142 Norway → 72	Germany → 188 Finland → 176 Hungary → 271 Italy → 113 Spain → 158 Norway → 202	Germany → 165 Finland → 103 Hungary → 167 Italy → 232 Spain → 174 Norway → 100
	IBV session	Spain → 11	Spain → 3	Spain \rightarrow 1	Spain → 1
Co-creation	Consortium session	30			
Total number of users involved		98		(621+131+688+1108+941+5) 3494	

Table 1: Total number of responses collected in the user research's studies

To tackle the user research, mainly we have distinguished between intermediate users and end users, in different user profiles:



- Intermediate users: only one user profile, including professionals and technicians involved in the value chain of the charging process.
- End users: three different profiles, including
 - o EV drivers
 - Internal combustions engine (ICE) drivers
 - LEV riders, including e-bikers, e-scooter riders and e-motorbike riders.

Table 1 summarizes the number of users that have participated in the initiatives included in the user research, which are described in the following sections. The users are classified per profiles and nationalities.

2.1 Qualitative research

User qualitative research aims to understand the whole process that a person has to confront when charging an electric vehicle. For understanding this process and its key factors and critical points, we have basically performed two types of interventions: observational interventions and inquire interventions.

By observing, we intend to learn about the problems the users have when tackling the charging process of an EV, in their diary life and in the context the employ the systems related to this charging process. Once we learned about the problems, we directly inquired them about reasons to have these problems, and if there are any functionalities, new ways of use or even strategies to overcome the failures they suffer when charging an EV.

2.1.1 Online observations

To perform the online observations we have applied *Netnography* [1]. This is an online research method aimed in understanding social interaction in contemporary digital communications contexts. Netnography uses the conversations occurring in social media platforms as data, substituting the traditional in-person observation techniques by interactions and experiences manifesting through digital communications.

As shown in *Figure 1*, for EV drivers the observations were performed in digital platforms of three different countries: Spain and Germany, representatives of big markets for vehicles at EU, and Norway which is the most developed market for EVs at EU. On the other hand, Netnography for LEV riders was performed in Spain, by visiting eight different forums (*Figure 3*).

Figure 1	: Total	amount	of EV	drivers	participat	ing in I	Netnography,	and	topics	of interest	mentioned.
					par croipac				00000		

SAMPLE			WEIGHT OF THE EV CHARGE ELEMENTS				
	Germany	Norway	Spain	222000000000000000000000000000000000000	Germany	Norway	Spain
Users	123	175	212	🚔 Electric vehicle	28%	33%	50%
X Mentioned aspects	183	232	472	Br Infrastructures	70%	21%	37%
Average of mentions	1,5	1,1	2,2	Incentives / Information	2%	46%	8%
📢 Forums	5	1	3	Environment	0%	0%	5%



For EVs, we collected comments from more than five hundred users (*Figure 1*), in nine different forums (*Figure 2*). These comments were classified in four topics: Electric vehicle, Infrastructures, Incentives and Environment.

FORDEV com	https://www.electromaps.com/foro http://foroev.com/	https://elbilforum.no/index.php
coches.ou	https://www.coches.net/	
	@ ELEKTROAUTO	https://elektroauto-forum.de/
	Goinglilectric	https://www.goingelectric.de/forum/
	alaktroaute @ community https://	/www.elektroauto.community/forums/
	TERA ALADOR DO DEDINOR	https://tff-forum.de/
	https://www.e	lektromobilitaet-forum.de/community/

Figure 2: Forums in Spain (3), Finland (1) and Germany (5) visited for Netnography

The observations for LEVs riders were performed exclusively in Spain. 8 different forums were visited, collecting comments from more than one hundred users (*Figure 3*). The comments were classified in three different groups: eScooter, eMotorbike and eBike.



Figure 3: Total amount of LEV riders participating in Netnography, visited forums

The webpages and forums shown in *Figure 2* and *Figure 3* were visited from 3rd of February to 13th of March 2020. The results obtained in this observation task are presented in section 4.1.

2.1.2 User insights

To identify user insights about problems and solutions related to charging an electric vehicle, our first plan was performing focus groups in five different countries. These countries were those that are represented in USER-CHI consortium by cities (Germany-Berlin, Finland-Turku, Hungary-Budapest, Italy-Rome, Spain-Barcelona). Due to COVID-19 pandemic disease situation, performing in-person meetings was not



possible, so we proposed to get users' insights employing online methodologies. In addition, in order to increase the quality of the information collected in this step, we differentiated between intermediate users (professionals and technicians) and end users (drivers and riders), proposing a different online methodology for each group.

In general, the online interventions proposed were based on questionnaires, mainly including open questions. By employing these questions type, we intended to collect information without imposing or suggesting any predefined concept.

2.1.2.1 Intermediate users insights

To get technical information related to the charging process of an EV, we have applied Delphi methodology. This methodology foresees the participation of professionals and experts, who answer questions related to the state of the art of a technology, and how this technology is evolving.



Figure 4: Delphi's participants grouped per gender, professional profiles and nationality

For this purpose, we generated a questionnaire grouped in four blocks (*Annex 1*: Delphi questionnaire), including between five and ten questions per block. Each block was addressed to different professional profiles, which were: Urban Mobility Planner (UMP), Electro Mobility Service Provider (EMSP), Charging Point Operator (CPO), and Distribution System Operator (DSO). The questionnaire was uploaded in



SurveyMonkey online platform¹, available for participants who filled up the questionnaire in an anonymised way.

Technical project partners were asked to distribute the questionnaire among their contacts' network. As a result of this process, we got 27 completed questionnaires in Delphi's first round, and 30 completed questionnaires in Delphi's second (and last) round.

As shown in *Figure 4*, most of Delphi's participants were men, and work as urban mobility planner. By countries, Hungary, Germany and Finland have been the ones which higher percentage of participants. The results obtained in Delphi questionnaire are presented in section *4.2*.

2.1.2.2 End user insights

For gathering direct information from end users, we defined a Field Diary. A field diary is an open questionnaire that can be answered directly by users that access through an online platform, or can be fulfilled with the support of a third person, in an interview format (not necessarily in-person, but employing telematics channels).

The *Field Diary* was uploaded in an online platform¹ (*Annex 2*: Field Diary), and the cities that are part of the project consortium (Barcelona, Berlin, Budapest, Rome, Turku) employed their citizens data base to contact users that matched the defined end user profile (*Table 2*). Each city was asked to contact a total number of 15 end users, corresponding to different profiles (*Table 2*). These users were invited by email or by a phone call, to fulfill the Field Dairy in an anonymized format.

City	Low range user professional	Low range user private	LEV user	Long range user
Barcelona	5		5	5
Berlin	5	5		5
Budapest		5	5	5
Rome		5	5	5
Turku	5	5	5	5

Table 2: End user profile per city for Field Diary





Figure 5: Field Diary participants grouped per gender, nationality and uses of EV

As shown in *Figure 4*, most of *Field Diary* participants have been men, that own an EV an employ it for urban and interurban trips. By countries, participants from Spain covered half of the total sample, and the other half is distributed among participants from Finland, Germany, Hungary and Italy. The total number of participants have been 126 (*Table 3*), and most of them (107, 85%) were EV drivers. The sample size for LEVs riders was small, especially in the case of electric bike riders.

Total number of participants: 126		Ownership	Company car	Rent or shared	
Type of vehicles	EV	Car	73	27	7
		motorbike	6		1
	LEV	scooter	8	1	
		bike	3		
	5-7 days a week		43	15	
Frequency of use	3-4 days a week		10	2	1
Trequency of use	2 or less days a week		4	2	
	e\	very month	1	1	1

Table 3: Field Diary participants' description



less than 12 times a	2
year	

The results obtained in *Field Diary* are presented in *Section 4.3*.

2.2 Quantitative research

In order to obtain the relative weight of the most relevant aspects related to the charging process of EVs, we performed a survey in six different countries. These countries were those represented in USER-CHI consortium by cities (Barcelona-Spain, Berlin-Germany, Budapest-Hungary, Rome-Italy, Turku-Finland) and Norway, the most developed EV market in EU.

We have distinguished three end user profiles to be considered in this survey: EV drivers, Internal Combustion Engine Vehicles (ICEV) drivers, and LEVs riders. For every user profile we stablished a sample size objective of 100² users per city, summing up a total number of 1,800 participants.

We designed two different questionnaires: one addressed to EV drivers, and another addressed to ICEV drivers, including questions regarding driven experience and improvements (*Annex 3*: Survey). The maximum number of questions was limited to 50 questions for both cases. On the other hand, both questionnaires included six questions (one filter question and five specific questions), related to LEVs, so we have got LEVs information from both profiles, EV drivers and ICEV drivers.

To enroll all the required participants in the six countries, we employed the SurveyMonkey database. This database includes the option to select users, that meet given requirements. These requirements limit the guaranteed amount of survey's respondents, so we had to adjust our requirements to our objective sample size.

Country	User profile	Number of answered questionnaires
	EV driver	134
Italy	ICEV driver	113
	LEV rider	232
	EV driver	142
Spain	ICEV driver	158
	LEV rider	174
Finland	EV driver	54

Table 4: Number of survey's respondents per country and user profile

² This is the sample size per user profile stated in the DOA document



ICEV driver	176
LEV rider	103
EV driver	117
ICEV driver	271
LEV rider	167
EV driver	169
ICEV driver	188
LEV rider	165
EV driver	72
ICEV driver	202
LEV rider	100
	ICEV driver LEV rider EV driver ICEV driver LEV rider ICEV driver ICEV driver LEV rider EV driver LEV rider ICEV driver LEV rider

After buying the users panels, the platform takes a few hours (normally less than 24) in accomplishing the sample size. The different users' panels for each country were bought among the 20th of July and the 31st of July. *Table 4* presents the numbers of respondents collected for the survey, for each defined profile.

2.3 Generating ideas for USER-CHI solutions

Co-creation tasks aim to propose solutions for USER-CHI products, based on user needs and expectations. It is not expected that co-creation results produce a high level's definition of the product, but generate innovative product concepts, that include features and utilities overcoming problems identified in user research.

Co-creation requires a sensibilization stage, in order participants gain awareness on problems, malfunctions and unsolved issues related the system they are going to work on. Participants in a cocreation workshop are asked to read some documents some days before the session, as the most common way for achieving the sensibilization.

Figure 6 shows some of the slides we employ in the workshop performed at IBV headquarters, on 11th of September. Presenting these slides we intended not only participants gain awareness on charging infrastructure, but also present USER-CHI project objectives.



Figure 6: Information sent to workshop participants on 11th of September



Sixteen people participated in the co-creation workshop, with different user profiles: researchers, engineers and developers (ETRA and IBV) to end users (from Valencia, enrolled in IBV's users database). The participants where distributed in four tables (*Figure 7*), and every table worked on a product: INCAR user app, the Station of the Future, INSOC and INDUCAR.

Figure 7: Users working on USER-CHI products







A second online co-creation workshop was performed on 15th of October. Professionals of the project consortium participated in this workshop, aimed to assessing results generated in the session performed on 11th of September. As sensibilization information we employed the report of results generated in the first co-creation workshop (*Annex 6*: Co-creation's results report). The participants met in a virtual meeting platform, and assessed the product concepts generated in the first workshop by employing an online platform (*Mentimeter*³).

3. Big Data Analysis

The Big Data Analysis as Task 1.1.1 of the USER-CHI project aims at complementing the user driven approach with a quantitative data analysis that includes and uses back-end-data of charging infrastructure within the five pilot sites. The aim of this analysis is to match the charging point backend data provided by charging point operators (CPOs) with customer data provided by the E-Mobility Providers (EMP) or the Mobility Service Providers (MSP).

With this data, different types of charging technologies (e.g. AC, DC, street-lighting), different tariff systems, on-road and off-road charging and different sites (central city, suburbs, TEN-T corridors) ought to be analysed on their effects on charging behavior. Existing user detailed data about the charging habits should be derived, considering how much time is spent at a given location, at which timeframe, the recharge power, the electricity supplied, the vehicle and the connector type, etc.

The Big Data Analysis will support the optimised design of charging infrastructure (number of points, location, technologies, connectors, power) and also the associated services that could be offered to drivers while charging. The result of the big data analysis therefore is a key input for the upcoming work packages.

The foreseen provision of data for the Big Data Analysis by partly project external data providers turned out to be highly affected by the current worldwide Corona situation with worldwide lockdowns and the focus of many companies and administrations on coping with the general situation. During the task several

³ <u>https://www.mentimeter.com/</u>



datasets could be gathered by and through project partners which however do currently not cover the desired depth (content), width (coverage), and quality needed to gather all information. In order to accomplish the goals of this task, a two staged approach for the big data analysis was therefore chosen to adapt to the shortcoming of the unplanned situation: The current first stage contains a description of the currently available datasets and some basis descriptives of the datasets. A second version of this deliverable is to be provided with more sophisticated quality handling and analysis of the data with respect to the different possible analysis dimensions.

For the analysis of the usage of charging stations within the five USER-CHI pilot cities, every city was asked to provide a dataset with locations and usage data of existing charging stations. The provided datasets give an insight on the location of charging stations in all pilot sites and differ in the quality of data and the dimensions covered.

The various datasets provided by the pilot sites differ in the variables and observations specified. This restricts analysis possibilities. In the following chapters the characteristics of the obtained data will be described to understand general possibilities and restriction for data-analysis.

3.1 Barcelona Data for the Big Data Analysis

3.1.1 Location of Charging Stations in Barcelona Metropolitan Area

For the Barcelona area, covering 21 charging stations was provided by AMB. The location of the charging points in the vicinity of Barcelona cover parts of the Mediterranean TEN-T corridor along the highways and near the Barcelona Airport El-Prat. The following *Figure 8* shows the location of the charging points within the Barcelona Area.



Figure 8: Locations of Charging Stations in Barcelona Metropolitan Area

all and a strong



3.1.2 Data Set

The dataset provided for the Barcelona metropolitan area is one of the more detailed within the five pilot sites, although covering only 21 charging stations. In the data set, each charging session is represented by one data set. An excerpt of the dataset is shown in the following *Table 5*. The observations include a charging point address as well as start-, stop-time and energy supplied [kWh]. Additional values for vehicle and model specifications were specified for roughly 50 % of the observations. Furthermore, a second dataset was provided with specific location information for individual charging stations. Here, longitude, latitude and loading type for each connector specified. The two datasets could be matched by the address. This made assigning an AC/DC loading type for every charging session possible.

Table 5: Barcelona dataset excerpt

Charging point	PdRR l'Hospitalet de Ll.: C. Salvador Espriu - Gran Via de les Corts Catalanes	PdRR l'Hospitalet de Ll.: C. Salvador Espriu - Gran Via de les Corts Catalanes	PdRR El Prat de Llobregat: Pl. Volateria (Mas Blau)	PdRR Gavà: C. del Progres, 54
Connector	1, CHAdeMO, 44 kW	1, CHAdeMO, 44 kW	1, CHAdeMO, 44 kW	1, CHAdeMO, 44 kW
Start time	31.12.2019 22:58	31.12.2019 21:25	31.12.2019 20:35	31.12.2019 20:18
Stop time	31.12.2019 23:21	31.12.2019 21:53	31.12.2019 20:52	31.12.2019 20:58
Duration (min)	24	29	18	41
Consumption (kwh)	10,7	17	5,2	20,4
Vehicle		NISSAN	MITSUBISHI	NISSAN
Model		LEAF	OUTLANDER PHEV	LEAF

3.1.3 First descriptives

In the following, chosen statistics in form of basic aggregates of the Barcelona data set are shown. It is to be mentioned, that no sophisticated quality assessment of the data was performed yet and all data sets seem to still contain at least some implausible values. Therefore, the presented aggregates can only give some first insights on the single data sets.

The Barcelona Dataset consist of 38.138 observations between 01.01.2019 and 31.12.2019.

Most of the charging session have a short duration with under 1 hour. The weekdays Monday to Friday account for each roughly 6.000 observations, while the weekends have less charging sessions with roughly 4.200 on Saturdays and 3.500 on Sundays.

Start- and Stop-time of the charging sessions are mostly distributed between 5:00 and 21:00.



3.2 Berlin Data Set

3.2.1 Location of Charging Stations in Berlin

The following Figure 9 depicts the location of charging stations within Berlin. The dataset contains more than 300 charging point IDs of the CPO Allego. Allego operates as one of three CPOs within the Berlin Model for charging infrastructure.

In contrast to the Barcelona dataset, the Berlin Charging Points cover mostly inner city locations within the 900 km² city. As seen in *Figure 9*, a total of 306 points are covered in the analyzed data. The charging points outside the inner city area are mostly located near to main traffic roads.



Figure 9: Locations of Charging Stations in Berlin

3.2.2 Berlin Data Set

The Berlin dataset was provided in a comparable format to the Barcelona data. One charging session for every charge pole represents one observation. The following *Table 6* shows the structure of the data provided. The datasets contain a ChargePoleID, a Session ID, an MSP-ID, a session-start timestamp, a session-end timestamp, the session duration, the actual charging duration, the energy consumed during the session as well as the average power during the charging duration (all without unit).



In a second data sheet provided, the location for every station is specified with address and coordinates (latitude, longitude). There was also a second id defined in this data (field id). The charge pole id, seen in *Table 6*, is reused as a location id and some charging stations are lacking a location id and could not be matched. A rudimentary specification of the charging types possible on the station could be found in the second dataset. As this only specifies which charging types are possibly at a station with available connectors and the data provided did not specify the connector used at a station, no differentiation of AC/DC charging is possible. Here the average power can be a starting point for the further analysis.

SessionId	3091771	3115111	3128751
ChargePoleId	DEALLEGO001027	DEALLEGO000185	DEALLEGO000105
MSPId	DETNM	DETNM	DETNM
Consign Stort	25-09-2018	28-09-2018	30-09-2018
SessionStart	08:17:01	16:57:15	12:37:42
SossionEnd	01-10-2018	03-10-2018	01-10-2018
Sessionend	11:07:11	13:02:07	13:41:57
Sum of SessionDuration	146,84	116,08	25,07
Sum of ChargingDuration	3,76	3,51	3,01
Sum of ConsumedEnergy	9,93	10,03	10,55
Sum of AveragePower	2,641383899	2,85873129	3,510515616

Table 6: Berlin dataset excerpt

3.2.3 First Descriptives

In the following, chosen statistics in form of basic aggregates of the Berlin data set are shown. It is to be mentioned, that no sophisticated quality assessment of the data was performed yet and all data sets seem to still contain at least some implausible values. Therefore, the presented aggregates can only give some first insights on the single data sets.

The Berlin Dataset consist of 117.704 observations between 01.10.2018 (stop-timestamp) and 31.12.2019. 12 charging sessions start at 1970-01-01 and end in November 2018 up to October 2019, implying that the start time is missing for these observations. 786 charging sessions in the dataset have no duration and no energy supplied. Therefore, a sophisticated quality test has to be performed in the second part of the analysis.

Neglecting the observed shortcomings of the dataset, and compared to the Barcelona dataset on a high level, the Berlin observations show longer charging durations with peaks at durations of 4 to 5 hours. Furthermore, more overnight charges (peak of stop time in the morning) are observed. As in Barcelona, the Berlin data shows an increase in energy supply during the observation duration.



3.3 Budapest Data Set

3.3.1 Location of Charging Stations in Budapest

For Budapest, so far only location data of charging points could be acquired. The total number of charging stations in Budapest is 163. Mainly located in the city center, and spread out into the west of the city, as shown in the following *Figure 10*.





3.3.2 Budapest Data Set

For charging stations in Budapest the charging power, type and location information were provided. The location was only given in form of an address and was manually located on the map.



Table 7: Budapest dataset excerpt

ZIP	1015	1027	1016	1011
Street name	Budapest, I. Kerület, Csalogány utca	Budapest, I. Kerület, Ganz utca 11-13.	Budapest, I. Kerület, Gellérthegy utca	Budapest, I. Kerület, Málna utca
Туре	22kW DC	22kW DC	22kW AC	22kW AC

3.3.3 First Descriptives

For the Budapest pilot site, no usage data could be acquired so far.

3.4 Rome Data Set

3.4.1 Location of Charging Stations in Rome

With a total of 515 charging station ids the Rome dataset covers the most charging points of all pilot sites. This high number of designated charging stations is questionable, as of a lot of charging stations are located in small areas as can be seen in *Figure 12*. The dataset listed a total count of 16 charging points on this intersection.

Figure 11: Locations of Charging Stations in Rome







Figure 12: Rome: Overlapping charging points (clusters of charging points and single street)

3.4.2 Rome Data Set

The provided data from Rome contains one observation per charging station and day. As shown in *Table 8*, the individual charging station is defined by its serial number and some locational information, as address, longitude and latitude. Two variables define the charging session: number of recharges and energy supplied [kWh]. For roughly 17 % of the stations, even these values are missing, so that only the day on which most probably one or multiple charging session occurred is recorded. For three charging stations, addresses changed inconsistently between two values.

Table 8: Rome dataset excerpt

Serial number	17ZM32T77B3W000001	17ZM32T77B3W000001	17ZM32T77B3W000001	
Region	Lazio	Lazio	Lazio	
Province	Rome Metropolitan City	Rome Metropolitan City	Rome Metropolitan City	
City	Rome	Rome	Rome	
Address_name	Area Servizio Selva Candida GRA km 8 - TotalErg	Area Servizio Selva Candida GRA km 8 - TotalErg	Area Servizio Selva Candida GRA km 8 - TotalErg	
Latitudine	41,957922	41,957922	41,957922	
Longitudine	12,385885	12,385885	12,385885	
Year	2019	2019	2019	
Month	set	nov	dic	
DayOfMonth	21	18	23	
Number of recharges	15	22	12	



			
Energy			
supplied	314,5	301,89	296,47
(kWh)			

3.4.3 First Descriptives

The following *Figure 13* shows summary statistics for the Rome data set. Due to the high aggregation of the data, only basic statistics can be done as depicted below. As in the other dataset, a general trend of a rise in energy consumed throughout the observation period is visible.



3.5 Turku Data Set

3.5.1 Location of Charging Stations in Turku

The smallest city of all pilot sites is Turku with a population of 190,000 people. This reflects in a dataset covering 18 charging stations spread out across the city. 17 of those are in the inner city and one outlying station.



Figure 14: Locations of Charging Stations in Turku

3.5.2 Turku Data Set

The dataset provided for Turku defined one observation for one loading session. Shown in *Table 9* for each station id, where a session was recorded, the start- and stop-time, energy supplied (Wh) and the charging type AC/DC were documented. As an information to locate the charging station only a station name assumed as the address were given.

Table 9: Turku dataset excerpt

Created	01.01.2019 01:47	01.01.2019 14:40	02.01.2019 07:34	
Station ID	1100	1100	1140	
Station name	Puutarhakatu 4	Puutarhakatu 4	Hämeenkatu 8	
Start time	01.01.2019 01:47	01.01.2019 14:40	02.01.2019 07:34	
Stop time	01.01.2019 01:47	01.01.2019 15:44	02.01.2019 11:55	
Duration	1	64	262	
Energy (Wh)	0	3270	6460	
Plug type	AC	AC	AC	





Figure 15: Statistics for the Turku Data Set



3.5.3 First Descriptives

The following *Figure 15* shows chosen summary statistics for the Turku data set. While for the other datasets, AC/DC distinction has to be derived from the data, the Turku dataset allows for a direct comparison as is shown in the following graphs.



The duration and time of single sessions with AC-Connector is (on a high level) comparable with the main dataset of Berlin, while the sessions with DC-Connectors draw a comparable picture to Barcelona. The energy supplied per month throughout the observation period rises as in all other pilot sites.

3.6 Summary and next steps

In the first half of Task 1.1.1, charging station location data for all five pilot sites as well as charging station usage data for four of the five pilot sites could be acquired. Due to the worldwide Corona situation, the Big Data Analysis could not be performed as was planned and the task needs to be extended. The analysis of the data therefore so far only covers basic views on the different data sets and first basic statistic. From the data it is apparent that quality, quantity, aggregation, technology and locations of the charging points and the data highly differs between the pilot sites.

The following *Table 10* depicts the summary statistics of the data sets acquired so far for the Big Data Analysis. The data provided give insights on the charging sessions within the different pilot sites and show basic patterns already on a high level.

	Metro. Area Barcelona	Berlin	Budapest	Turku	Rome
Number of Stations	21	289	No usage data acquired yet	18	515
Number of Recharges	38.138	106.123		7.737	123.790
Mean of Recharges per Day and Station	6,88	2,30		2,14	2,17
Mean active Days	263,90	159,32		201,06	110,52

Table 10: Summary Statistics

As the quality and quantity of data provided differs between the cities, a sophisticated quality analysis will be performed on all data sets and statistics will be chosen per pilot site. As was shown above, the dimensions of charging covered by the data differs, so that for each pilot site a different level of aggregation and analysis will be performed in order to derive general and transferable findings.

In the second half of this task, a sophisticated quality check based on the first findings will be done for each data set. Furthermore, the actual analysis will be designed and performed that will cover observed behavioural patterns of charging station usage and locational pattern, as far as observable from the data. The *Big Data Analysis* will therefore observe the usage of charging stations and derive insights for the design of the USER-CHI products.



4. Results

4.1 Netnography

Annex 4: Netnography results includes the full report presenting all the results obtained in Netnography. The results presented in this section (*Table 13*) are the most relevant comments, selected by importance and repetitiveness, of those expressed by end users in the forums visited.



Figure 16: Chargers distribution in Norway, Spain and Germany

The results presented in *Table 13* are organized in three sections: EVs, LEVs and Chargers Distribution. Although the situation regarding the quantity of chargers is quite different between Norway and Germany-Spain (*Figure 16, Figure 17*), users consider that the charging infrastructure is still an unsolved issue (*Figure 18*). This suggests that even in Norway, the charging infrastructure has no overcome the critical point that makes users perceive that it is not a problem anymore.

Regarding the charging process of the EV, results presented in *Table 13* suggest that users consider that there are two basic processes: charging for daily use in urban and interurban trips, and charging for long range trips. For daily use in short displacements the critical point is the availability of a charging point at home. Users consider that an EV without a charging point at home has no sense. On the other hand, for long range trips the key factor is superchargers (*Figure 19*). The possibility of getting high rates of charge in a few minutes (20-30 minutes), makes the users feel confident with electromobility for long range displacements.



Figure 17: Chargers per inhabitant in Norway, Spain and Germany



Figure 18: Differences among countries regarding charging infrastructure

CONCLUSIONS (I)

- There are no major differences among countries.
- In both Norway and Germany the average negative feedback on infrastructure is 50%, indicating that there are many areas for improvement
- In the case of Spain, the percentage of negative comments is higher, 79%.
- The percentage of negative comments when talking about electric vehicles is higher than that of positive comments: Spain (61%), Norway (67.5%) and Germany (56.5%)
- The three countries agree on the need to improve on the following topics:

neral improvements and to facilitate the installation of the EV changing system at home: In general, many users have a great unknowledge about the benefits of the electric vehicle; real autonomy and related 1.

- In general, that yourn have a great introducing about the benefits of the better, vender, real advanting and reacting factors act as a barrier in the acquisition of these. There is a general tack of knowledge about the VE charging system; hypology, compatibility, how it works, how it is paid, etc. All users agree on the need to be able to charge the EV at home or work. This fact reduces the number of potential users to those who own houses with their own or community garage (with restrictions). 3
- There is a lack of training / knowledge of professionals who sell and repair electric vehicles. Lack of incentives and aid to install EV charging systems at home or community parkings. Installing EV chargers in community parkings is difficult. 4
- 5.
- 6.

- More information about EV benefits; resolution of frequent doubls.
- More incentives from the public and private sector
- System that guides users in the use of the electric vehicle charging network; manage the planning, use and payment of the service in a unified way.
- Public car parking lots for EVs, for facilitating charging in urban areas. Incentives or legislation for companies to set up exclusive areas for EV charging

Another critical point for EVs users is the sure reservation to get a charge. At this moment is possible to make a reservation but the availability of the charging point when the user arrives is not guaranteed. Routing, making a reservation and paying employing a unique application is also a must for EV drivers.





Figure 19: Comments about charging infrastructure in Germany

Regarding LEVs, e-bikes are the best valued devices, as e-scooters are perceived as dangerous, and emotorcycles as expensive. Charging of e-bikes is an improving topic, but the overweight of these vehicles compared to mechanical bikes is perceived as a weakness.







4.2 Delphi questionnaire

4.2.1 Report of Delphi's results

USER PROFILE DESCRIPTION

Figure 4 shows the nationality and gender per user profile, of the different respondents of Delphi questionnaires (the two rounds).

The first questionnaire of the Delphi study has been fulfilled by 27 European professionals, and 30 has been fulfilled by in the second round. The participants are mainly males, Urban Mobility Planners (28) and Charging Point Operators (18). The countries with the highest representation in the study are Hungary, Germany, Finland and Spain.

URBAN PLANS: MANAGEMENT

In the following paragraphs, the most relevant answers recollected regarding the management of Urban Mobility Plans are presented:

- The main concerns in the cities (*Figure 21*), at the moment, are increase location, electric public transport, users' friendly apps, easy access, e-cars for short and long haul and e-bike.
- The strategy to be followed by cities is based on the following priorities:
 - standardization of technical components,
 - interoperability at European level,
 - roaming,
 - legal support,
 - automatic user detection,
 - mandatory OCPP,
 - registration and payment in an application,
 - regular payment methods, and use of Distributed Ledger Technology (DLT).
- Implementing these strategies requires regulations at the EU level, national level and local level.
 In addition, it is necessary to develop technical tender requirements and decision-making based on a cooperative and holistic method, where all the agents are around the same table.
- Municipalities and regional governments are on charge of the strategy. Sometimes these
 institutions cooperate with suppliers, and agencies/departments for Environment, Sustainability
 or even Transport.
- Private users and mobility suppliers are on charge of building and managing charging stations. Mobility suppliers have different profiles: Service companies of AC and curb side chargers operated by the City, DC rapid chargers joint-ventures between the City and private charging companies and CPO selected in a tendering process.



Figure 21: Urban planners priorities



 Usually is allowed to build charging infrastructure by entities authorized by the municipal and regional governments, service providing companies, the city for AC and DC charging on public ground/streets.

URBAN PLANS: PRIORITIES AND IMPROVEMENTS

In the following paragraphs, Urban Mobility Plans priorities and improvements are presented:

- Currently we can distinguish two basic strategies.: cities that no prioritize users; and cities that prioritize drivers with high inner-city mileage (e-taxis, delivery vans, electric freight vehicles, electric car sharing etc.). On the other hand, car sharing is the best option from planning perspective (reduce number of vehicles
- The professionals consider that we are in a first phase of basic network. Location of charging stations is based on demand of specific user groups (commercial, car sharing) and private users (charging at home).


- When the technology matures and the widespread use of the electric vehicle is viable, supply will have to be adjusted to demand: High power DC at the end points of the bus line, Low power DC at the bus depot, AC stations around the city.
- The logistics in public transport and utilities (included their own facilities and malls) is being updated and its improvement is a priority.
- It is also necessary to increase the EV autonomy, minimizing the number of charges required and the charging speed to reduce total charging time. Furthermore, is necessary to focus on areas with old town houses and multi-family building: AC near home/work address, DC good accessibility, close to main roads, away from housing, 300m radius around charging points with no other CPs.
- Another criterion to consider is the focus between the public/private space. Since public space is highly contested, there should as much charging infrastructure as possible be provided on private ground; or prioritize to use the public space.
- Wherever, the specific location should orient on the charging preferences of the users in semiclose distance and the demands through the day (may differ with regard to Centre and suburbs).



Figure 22: Estimated amount of charging points in cities

- The identified charging needs pending improvement are:
 - users friendly APP and payments,
 - good coverage,
 - availability of AC charging infrastructure on the (small) neighbourhood level,
 - easy access,



- excellent availability (multiple chargers on one location),
- overnight parking,
- shop & charge,
- and streetlight-parking.

In conclusion, the technology is not mature enough (for example, it is unknown whether with electric batteries it is possible to achieve the required charging speeds and autonomies), the electric vehicle with current technology is only possible for specific uses. And there are environmental aspects associated with EV that are not being adequately considered (for example, the use of EV does not eliminate congestion, that is eliminated by rational urban planning and public transport).









In the following paragraphs, the features of cities' charging infrastructure are presented:



• In the cities, the number of charging points installed are mainly between 500 to 1000.

kW	Time
22	15-25 minutes
5 (the mean of charge)	15-25 minutes
50	15-25 minutes
50	20 minutes
3.6	Time varies a lot: during work day at office and during night at homes; and a few hours when visiting a shopping center.
50	Less than 1 hour or business time
11	3 hours

Table 11: Most common electric power supplied in charging stations

- The participants consider that between 6 12 % of all parking spaces should be equipped with charging possibility to sustain a 100 % electrified fleet in the city. The objectives are to achieve between 1,000 to 2,000 public and semi-public charging points in the city area.
- The key locations for charging stations are: shopping malls, parking lots, gas stations. curb side, public parking lots, and mobility hubs.







- It is necessary for the technology to mature (autonomy and charging speed) so that the general use of the EV with an acceptable number of charging points is possible.
- The most important features are the speed of the load in the vehicle and normal credit/debit card paying possibility with reasonable costs (it would ease the charging from several different apps and tags to normal buying with card).
- The Sockets (Type2, ChaDeMo, CCS) and the Charging technology (AC / DC) are the two most implemented current features (*Figure 23*).
- The most common electric power supplied to a charging point is shown in *Table 11*.
- The most important aspects for improving the current charging points are presented in *Figure 24*. Location, interoperability and standardization stand as the most relevant.

THE E-MOBILITY SERVICES FOR USERS

In the following paragraphs, the key aspects and priorities to provide Mobility Services are presented:

- The chance to lower down the power depending on the service package that customer is using are a valuable option, for example in locations that have limited power supply from the distribution network.
- The MSPs consider the most important features to provide are the speed of the load in the vehicle and normal credit/debit card paying possibility with reasonable costs (it would ease the charging from several different apps and tags to normal buying with card).
- For the MSP is interesting to provide:
 - Total charge at minimum time;
 - Total charge at lowest price (it is not reasonable to make charging time longer when there is scarcity for charging points and car parking spots in city Centres);
 - and Total charge at maximum percentage of renewable energy.
- One service is optimal when can be accessed remotely; it is possible to lower down the charging power dynamically and the payments go through the operating system. The customer starts the charging via mobile application or RFID tag and the points are operating 24/7.

INFORMATION FLOW AMONG THE MAIN ACTORS

In the following paragraphs, the key factors and priorities for information exchange among different actors are presented:

- The communication protocol between E-mobility Service Providers (MSP) and CPOs is based in two modalities: in person via phone and email, or using the system *Open Charge Alliance*.
- Regarding the kind of data or requirements from the DSO, it could be said that currently, in at least half of the cases, there are no established CPO-DSO communication protocols or they are not of interest (for example, only using 1x16A). DSO's do not send any data. They have their own energy meters.
- There are data requirements only in reserve markets which are organized via transmission system operators (TSO).





Figure 25: Topics related to fees fixation

- It is identified experiences with use of APIs; integrated systems with the DSO as the operational integration in Martineque (continuously) or RLM connection, (each 15min).
- Currently, regarding the integration of the energy mix information in the charging management systems, there are two groups:
 - one, where sharing information is not necessary because is simple to purchase 100 % clean energy from the energy markets (6⁴), or because they choose a green energy supplier, certified green energy (renewable) is mandatory, so they do not have an energy mix;
 - and another (4⁴) where it is not available on their charging management system, because there is no integration that can tell when a customer changes their energy

⁴ Number of users agreeing with this statement



contract, B2C charger owner's data would not even be GDPR compatible to automatically attain even if it was possible in practice.



Figure 26: Features of the charging system



- There is need for fast and accurate energy, and power metering so it is possible to authenticate the changes in power (up- or downshift in power).
- Frequently the voltage drops and the constant exchange of information is needed (e.g. PPAs at large charging facilities and exploring synergies between TEN-T and TEN-E networks, and smart charging).
- The type of data for sharing, identified by the participants, is:
 - In demand stress situations
 - Power limitations
 - Flexible pricing
 - V2G requirements (will form a completely new business segment for EV companies as it opens the instant demand response markets for DSO companies).
 - Energy origin /energy mix.
 - Energy amount to supply.

In a near future, the communication between the e-mobility agents (Urban Planners, MSP, CPO, DSO) and energy ecosystem data will be a key factor (9 of 10 consider that it is necessary). Smart grid requires online communication between all parties for serving EVs.

CHARGING POINT OPERATOR PROTOCOLS

In the following paragraphs, the most relevant answers regarding the Charging Points Operators protocols are presented:

The CPOs are open to accept a protocol change if it improves your service (if would not have to upgrade the already installed older devices and chargers, and if it has a standard like EVs). It is necessary to consider the impact and the improvements since effort for changes are high.

- Currently, the used protocols are (*Figure 27*):
 - OCPI 2.2.
 - Strengths: In this version it's possible to communicate as CPO the maximum actual charging power of the charge point in kW (if it is somehow limited) to the EMPs. OCPI 2.2 supports the concept of roaming hubs with different suboperators;
 - Weaknesses: improved releases with more roles, smart charging options etc are required.
 - OCPI 2.0.
 - Strengths and Weaknesses: doesn't support the 2 strengths of OICP 2.2 (roaming hubs and communication of the actual charging power of an EVSE)
 - Weaknesses: Same as for OCPI 2.2 cost, requires technical knowledge; It has Open protocols; it is the first official protocol with roaming functionalities, enabling multiple use (CPO/EMSP).





Figure 27: Communication protocols

- o Just important that our charging infrastructure is OCPP compliant.
- o Other used versions as:
 - OCPP-J 1.6: is compatible with almost all charge points but lack of features. OCPP J-1.6 is wide spread.
 - Strengths: JSON over websockets, easy to set up a secure, persistent connection across varied networks
 - Weaknesses: not supported by old chargers. Implementations may vary across charger manufacturers.
 - OCPP-S 1.5:
 - Strengths: Widely supported by even old chargers Weaknesses: Requires a bidirectional communication link, both the central system and charger function as SOAP servers Proprietary ENSTO protocol: Strengths: Slightly more detailed information on certain charger aspects than are available on OCPP
 - Weaknesses: Used by only a single manufacturer, support for devices using the protocol is ending.
- Another protocol option is the own develop proprietary, strength is lower price of devices.

MAIN FEATURES OF THE CHARGING MANAGEMENT

The main features of the systems for charging EVs are:

 \circ $\;$ Dynamic charge. Frequently, they are based on the amount of energy to supply.





- Differentiate consumption, through charging sets with a separate smart meter to have a dynamically changing and adapting DLM.
- It is necessary to consider the technical limitations and economic considerations of the location where charging infrastructure should be located.
- The CPOs consider the dynamic charging management could be advantageous for their business because makes possible the cost optimization. In some cases, it is already one of the most important factors in product development.
- Dynamic pricing could be interesting and also balance infrastructure utilisation, reduces station installation costs (the price difference using slower or faster charging speed is a valuable option).
- The most frequent parameters for fixing the fees are: the power supplied (kWh) and parking time.



 \circ The buy of electricity with fixed price and fully renewable is a current practice, so it is not necessary for everyone.

Figure 28 shows the features of the current systems. The most frequent answers are charging point status, power limitation, dynamic load management, and monitoring of usage of charging. stations.

- Finally, a divided opinion is observed regarding the kind of information to provide related to the charging process of EV. Some CPOs consider these features are not a priority, but others consider there are lots to develop and in a near future new features/parameters will be added.
- Regarding the information options, the participants value positively the followings:
 - the ecological footprint;
 - reduction in CO2 emissions achieved;
 - charge planning;
 - time the charging infrastructure is blocked by a non-charging car;
 - the composition of the electricity mix;
 - and user preferences.

4.2.2 Main findings

The results presented in *Table 14* are the most relevant opinions, selected by importance and repetitiveness, of those expressed by the experts and technicians that participated in in the two rounds of Delphi's method.

Results presented in *Table 14* are organized in four sections. The first and the fourth correspond to the information provided by UMPs and DSOs respectively, while the information provided by EMSPs and CPOs is spread between the second section and the third section.

According to results shown in the first section of *Table 14*, urban mobility planners are committed with fostering electromobility, without losing the main aim of reducing traffic congestion in the cities. They assume that increasing the number of chargers is critical to make electromobility feasible, but fostering other mobility alternatives like LEVs or public transport is also necessary.

For EMSPs and CPOs electromobility requires that between 6 and 12% of available city parking lots are equipped with chargers. The most important features for these chargers are the speed of the charge and making available credit card payment. On the other hand, to improve the charging points requires a good selection of locations, interoperability and standardization of technical features. Regarding additional options for charging, minimum charging time, lowest price, maximum percentage of green energy, ecological footprint, reduction in CO₂ emissions, charge planning, time the charging infrastructure is blocked by a non-charging car, and user preferences are considered interesting features by some experts. These extra features require exchange of information among all the actors (EMSPs, CPOs and DSOs) through the protocol OCPI 2.2. At any case, accomplishing OCPP protocol should be a must for USER-CHI charging infrastructures.

Regarding the charging management, the most common parameters for fixing the charging fees are power supplied (kWh) and parking time.



4.3 Field Diary

4.3.1 Report of Field Diary's results

USER PROFILE DESCRIPTION

Figure 5 presents the gender, nationality and uses of EV of Field Diary participants. Additionally, *Figure 29* presents the educational background, family unit, and EV experience user profile of respondents.



Figure 29: Educational background, Family unit EV experience of Field Diary respondents



The online Field Diary study has been fulfilled by 123 European electric vehicle users. The profiles with the highest representation in the study are: man (80%), between 26-55 years (70%), with high school or college degree background (63%), with 1-2 years of experience (42%), urban driver (46%) with their own car (71%, *Table 11*).



Table 12: Type of EV and frequency of use

		IS MY PROPERTY	FROM MY COMPANY	FOR RENT OR SHARED
	CAR	73	27	7
ΤΥΡΕ ΩΕ ΕΥ	MOTORBIKE	6		1
	SCOOTER	8	1	
	BIKE	3		
	5-7 DAYS A WEEK	43	15	
	3-4 DAYS A WEEK	10	2	1
FREQUENCY OF USE	2 OR LESS DAYS A WEEK	4	2	
	EVERY MONTH	1	1	1
	LESS THAN 12 TIMES A YEAR			2

CHARGING EXPERIENCE RATING

In the following paragraphs, the most relevant answers recollected regarding the charging experience rating (*Figure 30*) are presented:

• The users of EV are highest satisfied with the EV experience in general. Almost all report that they will buy an electric vehicle again.

Figure 30: EV's charging experience





 All the valuated criterions are positive (ratings greater than 3 on a scale of 1 to 5). In particular the app functionalities get an average score of 4.08. It means that we are in a linear quality scenario, in which the improvement of the functionalities is well valued and will increase satisfaction.

CHARGING EXPERIENCE

In this section, the key aspects of the charging process are presented:

- LEVs: The usually users are proprietary of the vehicles that are used with a high frequency. The electrical charge is mainly done at home, the use of the LEV entails the non-use of apps, they recharging at home and not needing to plan the routes. The problems identified have been traffic safety and the ease of theft of these vehicles. In some cases, the participants commented on the need to have public chargers for their LEVs.
- EV: Many participants comment that they charge the vehicle at home and that one of the problems is the lack of charging infrastructure (few points in the city and on the road), in addition to the problems of finding the reserved space occupied and the low power of load. We found an exception in Tesla drivers who consider that the charging network and the app work efficiently. When charging away from home they use mainly the following charger options: charging stations, car parks and shopping centres.

Next, the keys related to the way in which the charge is planned and carried out, the problems that are identified and the proposals for improvement indicated by the participants are detailed.

But first, some literal contributions are shown to better understand the experiences of users.

HISTORIES

I love e-cars. A few years back I knew nothing about them, but after I met my partner I got thrown into this crazy life of converted cars, which does not always go as intended but which makes it even a bit funnier than having a normal factory-made e-car. The best features are the easiness of charging the car at home and that I don't have to fill up the car with stinky fuels (a few times a year I have to drive a van and the filling up feels so old-fashioned...), the silence, the fast acceleration, the economic efficiency. I can make a long list! I am sure that in the future when it becomes topical to buy my own car, it will be electrical. I do not see myself owning a car with any other driving force than electricity in the future. User profile: Millenial men.

If we want the majority of people to use e-vehicles and their charging stations, a payment card method should be created, no matter how difficult that would be. It would solve many issues which occur when using apps, weak Internet or SMS payment. Most drivers in Finland have a payment card and a card preauthorization would work similarly to normal tanking. The fact that most stations require a smart phone excludes many drivers because they are not going to purchase a smart phone just because of this, if they do not already own one. Of course, this group of people is quite marginal but still I think that everyone should have the possibility to charge without owning a phone and an app. My parents are in their fifties but I am sure neither of them would start downloading an app at a station. Neither of them is capable of buying an app from the app store, but it's us kids who have helped them with it, so if they would be travelling alone it would be very hard for them to charge the car without pre-downloaded apps or tags. The service providers should really start to mind different users, different situations and different starting points. Even though you drive an e-car does not mean you have a smart phone or understand anything about them. At the moment the charging process is actually very discriminating because it requires the



skill to use a smart phone, which not all users have. Of course, you can learn how to use them but it does not help if you have for example borrowed an e-car from a friend and suddenly you should be able to charge it and apps are required everywhere. If it is impossible to have a debit card-based payment method at the stations then at least it should be possible to start the charging by phoning because the text messages so often fail. User profile: Millenial woman.

In my family we only have one car which my partner mostly uses to drive to work. Our hooded, fourwheeled e-scooter comes in handy every time I need to go the grocery store, library or daycare with the children during rain or if we have something heavier to carry, which would be too difficult with a bike. The e-scooter replaces a car well in a smallish town in which we live in. The battery's endurance is good and I'm able to ride longer distances with it, too. The only obstacle is safety: I do not want to ride with it in streets which don't have cycling lanes. Also, the noise of the battery inside the scooter becomes a little bit annoying during longer distances. If I wanted to buy another e-vehicle, it would be a bike. User profile: LEV rider (woman).

I recharge practically always at the same point, next to a supermarket that is next to my house. I usually book 15min before. The charging point is AMB. During recharge time, I go with the children to the park or go shopping. At the moment I do not pay the recharge, it is free. User profile: Woman with children.

At home I have a charging point and near work a public fast charging point that I use sporadically. During recharging time at the public point, I take the opportunity to have breakfast in a coffee shop. User profile: Single woman or man.

For the vehicle the truth is that it is fantastic. The worst thing is that for my profession you have to take one that has great autonomy and the chargers in the metropolitan area do not work very well, there are many that take months to repair. Those in the metropolitan area are not very powerful except for some that in half an hour you can charge 125km but most of them are not worth going because they don't even reach 90 km / hour. Luckily there are Tesla chargers in my town otherwise it would be a problem. In short, if I had to depend on the chargers that are in the city and the area, I would not buy an electric car. User profile: Professional driver.

I have already repeated the purchase and will repeat it again when necessary. The best: The electric car has much better characteristics than a gasoline one, it never jerks, the response is immediate, maintenance is close to zero, consumption is much lower because it is more efficient, and at the same time more economical because it is electricity is cheaper than gasoline. The worst: The price, they are too expensive. Autonomy does not affect me, you must plan trips and be more aware of the lack of recharging points but it does not throw me back when deciding to buy an electric. User profile: Babyboomer man.

Buy again after 5 years of use. the worst experience (still today !!), are the charging infrastructure. User profile: Babyboomer man.

At some charging points, even though you have the charge reserved, when I arrived I had the seats occupied and I was unable to charge. The users of the vehicles in the square wait for the reservation to be exhausted to load them with the excuse that they have arrived earlier. The charging time for electric cars is high, with only 30min it is not enough for all models. Fortunately, Nissan has the CHAdeMO and with 30min I can already manage, although if no one comes I will leave it for a while, but I have seen users who stay up to 3 hours to charge the car. User profile: Man with children.



Clear and consistent instructions should be created and added to all the stations for all the users to see. The identification should be made easier (less apps, more options to pay with credit card), more signs and instructions at the stations. The traffic signs indicating the charging point and possible markings on the asphalt at stations should be unified and there should be a sign at the parking lots or parking halls to clearly indicate where the charging happens if it is not immediately obvious. Put up more signs to indicate the location of charging points. More double charges by the main roads, this would really decrease the chance of an occupied charging point. More quick chargers and clear signs and instructions. User profile: Young man with EV+LEV.

PLANNING THE CHARGE

In the following paragraphs, the mainly experiences in the planning charge are presented:

 Currently, the LEV users charge the vehicle at home and they don't need plan the routes. Usually they know their itinerary and enjoy the experience without having to resort to the charging infrastructure on a regular basis.



Figure 31: Example of App's route monitoring

• For the EV are a large number of apps with very diverse functionalities. Currently, not all of them offer reliable navigation, location and booking of charging points.



- In apps, problems are detected to identify the chargers that exist, not all of them are offered by the apps. It doesn't appear in the search.
- Charging points cannot be selected / filtered properly according to the type of charge (type of socket, power, status, price...).
- It cannot be booked in the entire network of points, only in the charging points associated with the app.
- It could be recommended a monitoring of the planned routes (*Figure 31*).
- The participants promote changes in the booking typologies for improve the access to the charging point, such as: increasing the charging time with booking, limiting the charging time with booking to 30 minutes and cutting off the supply when the time comes, making it possible to increase the charging / booking time if there is no waiting vehicles, issue an end of loading notice with booking.

ACCESS AND AUTHENTICATION

In the following paragraphs, the features of cities' charging infrastructure are presented:

- The participants claim better access and signage at charging points.
- Once the reservation has been done and reached the charging point, in many cases the driver finds the place occupied by:
 - Vehicles that have exceeded their pre-reserved charging time and are still charging (booking charging is usually limited to 30 minutes).
 - Electric vehicles that are not charging.
 - Fuel vehicles that use the place as parking.
- The participants consider that a charging method that does not require authentication should be provided, so that people who do not want to have a subscription and prefer to pay with a card.

CHARGE PROCESS

In the following paragraphs, the key factors and priorities during the charge process are presented:

- Additional to home, participants mainly charge their vehicles in charging stations, parking lots and shopping centres (*Figure 32*).
- During charging, EV users do activities such as: have a coffee, shop, work, go to the park with the children, wait in the car, ...
- Participants do not detail charging monitoring experience. Feedback such as time remaining to complete the charge, percentage of charge in real time, incidents such as service interruption in real time are very valued. Some users consider that these features should be developed.
- The charging points there are usually at least two vehicle charging sockets, but they only admit one charge, so that if a vehicle starts charging at a charging point in use, the service is interrupted. This is another aspect that they consider should improve through outage information, increased power and allowing multiple vehicles to charge at the same time.



• In this stage, the type of socket is a critical point. To standardize the sockets developing only one model is another frequent aspect.



Figure 32: Usual charging locations

PAYMENT AND FEEDBACK

In the following paragraphs, the key factors and priorities for the payment stage are presented:

- Currently the participants usually pay through the app, by service contract. This modality of payment is well valued in general. The participants consider that there should be flat rates that improve the cost of sporadic charges.
- Regarding the payment system, some participants claim the possibility to pay with a card, not requiring a subscription to a specific charging network.
- o Others proposals are related to the request for apps that unify all functionalities and providers.
- Maybe the only lack is the information provided (price, time, kW, ...).

CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE PROBLEMS

In the following paragraphs, the most relevant answers regarding the charging infrastructure problems are presented:

- The most frequent problems (with more than 20 participants referred it) are related with the infrastructure (except for the autonomy of the EV), in particular:
 - the booked charging station are already occupied by another vehicle,
 - few charging points (don't have near home),
 - very public charging point are broken, low car's autonomy,
 - few charging points of the highway,



Figure 33: Problems related to charging infrastructure



- few efficient charging points,
- low power or limited power,
- excessive charging time
- and few ultrafast chargers.



- By country, the following problems stand out:
 - Hungary: highlights the problems of booking (not well resolved) because of the occupation by cars that are not charging
 - Germany: highlights the problems of the occupation by cars that are not charging and charging station not in operation/broken.
 - Finland: highlights the problems of safety with LEV, no replacement of car in many situations of maintenance and the possible theft of the bike.
 - Italy and Spain: highlights the problems of charging infrastructure, few charging areas and occupied spaces.

Figure 33 shows all identified problems with the number of mentions made by participants.

CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

In the following paragraphs, the most relevant claims regarding the charging infrastructure improvements are presented:

- The most frequent proposals are the increase of the charging points in the city and the highway, considering improve their faster and usability.
- The improvement more mentioned are:
 - More charging points around the city. At least 50 for each borough. Maybe in the city light poles.
 - Faster and more usable sockets outside the city (highway).
 - Possibility to charge several cars at the same time. Charging points with various types of socket that can be used simultaneously without derating.
 - There should be the same application for locate, navigate, to book the charge them more than 15min in advance, to configure the charge, monitoring the charge and pay the service.
 - Ability to charge even without a contract/subscription. The direct use of a credit card or debit card on the column could be valid without using the App in a way very similar to a petrol station.
 - More "super-fast" charging point distributed in a more intelligent way on the territory.
 - I would like 30 min to stop automatically. I would remove the reservation from the charging point and unplug the vehicle after half an hour.
 - Standarized sockets (only one model). Universal charger for all cars and charging points in all car parks, whether private or public.
 - The charge it should cost less.
 - Faster charges.
 - Two parking areas must be set up for each charging point, since there are two different types of sockets.
 - Encourage much more advantageous than traditional mobility (free recharges, no need to get a ticket since the vehicle is already identified with a blue 0 emissions label, all free tolls...).
 - A platform/app that shows all the charging points regardless of their brand, type of socket, ...
 - More information on the mobile to know the status of the charge.



Figure 34: Identified improvements for charging infrastructure





- \circ $\;$ All the improvement proposals are oriented to solve the identified problems.
- Many proposals are oriented to new functionalities for a better clear and reliable information in real time and easy the process.

Figure 34 details all the identified improvements proposed by respondents, with the number of mentions.

GENDER KEYS

If we specifically analyze the driving experience of women, it stands out that almost all female participants have children, only one of the participants is over 55 years old, their time of experience in an electric vehicle and driving frequency is similar to the global one (less time of experience is detected) and is detected more use of small vehicles (Renault Zoe, Nissan Leaf ...).

They carry out the charges at home or in shopping centers. It mainly concerns:

- the use of spaces reserved by vehicles that are not charging or occupying the space to charge without respecting the reservation;
- o respect for the booked usage time (the reservation is 30 minutes and the user stay longer);
- the low charging capacity of the stations (you can only charge one vehicle, not several at the same time).

Also, they miss more faster charging (more ultra-fast chargers and higher charging power) and reliable information.

CONCLUSSIONS

The main features of the currently situation of the EV charging infrastructure are:

The use of the electric car requires charging planning, since, although many drivers have a charger at home, they need other charging points on their itineraries (charging stations, car parks, ...). The use of apps is a requirement for them.

- There are a large number of apps with very diverse functionalities. Currently, not all of them offer reliable navigation, location and booking of charging points.
 - In apps, problems are detected to identify the chargers that exist, not all of them are offered by the apps. It doesn't appear in the search.
 - Charging points cannot be selected / filtered properly according to the type of charge (type of socket, power, status, price...).
 - It cannot be booked in the entire network of points, only in the charging points associated with the app.
- Once the reservation has been done and reached the charging point, in many cases the driver finds the place occupied by:
 - Vehicles that have exceeded their pre-reserved charging time and are still charging (booking charging is usually limited to 30 minutes).
 - Electric vehicles that are not charging.



- Fuel vehicles that use the place as parking.
- The participants promote changes in the booking typologies such as: increasing the charging time with booking, limiting the charging time with booking to 30 minutes and cutting off the supply when the time comes, making it possible to increase the charging / booking time if there is no waiting vehicles, issue an end of loading notice with booking ...
- During charging, EV users do activities such as: have a coffee, shop, work, go to the park with the children, wait in the car, ...
- Participants do not detail charging monitoring experiences that indicate: time remaining to complete the charge, percentage of charge in real time, incidents such as service interruption ...
 Some users consider that these features should be developed.
- In the charging points there are usually at least two vehicle charging sockets, but they only admit one charge, so that if a vehicle starts charging at a charging point in use, the service is interrupted. This is another aspect that they consider should improve.
- Regarding the payment system, the possibility of being able to pay with a card is claimed and not requiring a subscription to a specific charging network. These proposals are related to the request for apps that unify all services and providers.

In the case of LEV users, the experience is totally different. The use of the LEV does not require planning, so the app is not used regularly. Charging is done at homes, although they demand a more extensive, public and free charging infrastructure to cover the need to charge during the day. The problems identified are related to road safety and the possibility of theft of the LEV.

4.3.2 Main findings

The results presented in *Table 15* are the most relevant opinions, selected by importance and repetitiveness, of those expressed by the end users from five different countries that fulfilled the diaries.

Participants in the Field Diary express their satisfaction with electromobility, but they repeat some of the key points detected in the precedent research: charging at home (or even around home) is essential for employing the car in urban and interurban trips, and the use of the car in long range trips requires the availability of a good network of high performance's chargers and additional services. As car electromobility has three main components (cars, infrastructures and apps), these results suggest that the car is the most developed component, which has passed an acceptance threshold, while infrastructures and apps have not yet achieved this threshold.

Regarding additional services, users are thinking how to employ the time taken by the charge. This involves a charging station where different activities can be performed, ranging from work to leisure activities. During the charging time, users demand monitoring tools like *remaining time for charging, percentage of charge in real time* or *service interruption alarm*, in order they can manage this waiting time.

To ease the charging process, users foresee free access to charging points without subscribing, and credit card payments. On the other hand, there is a recurrent demand for a procedure that ensures the availability of a charging point when it has been booked in advance.



LEVs are employed in urban trips, and therefore are charged at home, although users demand a more extensive, public and free charging infrastructure.

Regarding gender issues, although most of participants were men, women concerns are represented by the results exposed in the precedent paragraphs. On the other hand, men and women have a similar driver profile, although women use to drive smaller car models.





Table 13: Netnography most relevant results

Most relevant results				
EVs	Differences among countries		 There are no major differences among the three countries (Finland, Germany, Spain). In both, Norway and Germany, negative feedback on infrastructure (50%), shows many areas for improvement. In the case of Spain, the percentage of negative comments is higher, 79%. Negative comments are higher than positive, when talking about EVs: Spain (61%), Norway (67.5%), Germany (56.5%). The three countries agree on the need to improve on the charging systems at home and on route. 	
	Charging system at home	Barriers Improvemen ts	 There is a great unknowledge about the benefits of EVs or real autonomy; this a barrier for the acquisition. There is a general lack of knowledge about the charging systems: typology, compatibility, how it works, or how to pay. EVs must be charged at home and at worksite; infeasibility of home charge, inhibits the EV purchase. There is a lack of training and knowledge of professionals who sell and repair EVs. Lack of incentives and aid to install EV charging systems at home or community parkings. Installing EV chargers in community parkings is difficult. More information about EV benefits; resolution of frequent doubts: More incentives from the public and private sector System that guides users in the use of the EVs charging network: manage the planning, use and payment in a unified way. Public car parking lots for EVs for facilitation charging in urban areas 	
	Charging systems on route	Barriers	 Incentives or legislation for companies to set up exclusive areas for EV charging There are many different operators in each country; unified loading system, incompatibilities in access and payment methods. Lack of maintenance, especially in the free EV charging infrastructure. More fast chargers are required Users need to know if the charging points are busy; make a reservation. ICEVs occupy the parking lots for EVs. There is a demand for some system or guide to help planning long range routes. Managing the time required for charging EVs; to control the time the vehicle is going to be on charge, and charging power Price regulation at private EV charging points; prices are too high: Adequacy of service areas (charging points): with additional services. 	
		Improvemen ts	 System that guides users in EV charging points, managed in an unified way: planning, use and payment Improvement of the EV charging point network: more charging points, more fast chargers on route, and better maintenance. Possibility of regulating power and time of EV charging point. 	

61 D1.1 User requirements



·····		
		Adequacy of service areas.
		Price regulation.
		• Electric bicycle (68% of positive comments) is the best valued LEV: they are great for going to work or shopping.
	o Pil	• The weight of e-bikes must be improved (greater than conventional bikes), and there is no variety of sizes.
	E-DIK	• They need charging every day, and the user has to handle a heavy bike or a detachable battery, what is not very ergonomic.
		 Batteries last only 3-4 years, and bike lanes in Spain are scarce or saturated with other LEVs
		• The e-Scooter is the second best valued LEV, with 58% of positive comments. It is a great vehicle for cities and for short trips.
Bar	rriers	They are easy to store and transport due to their weight and folding frame.
	e-5000	 They are considered dangerous by the users themselves, (falls), as well as dangerous for pedestrians.
		 In general, they have problems of coexistence and circulation with other vehicles and pedestrians.
LEVS		• The e-Motorcycle collects more negative aspects (52%).
	e-	They have low autonomy and high price.
	IVIOTORC	 The charging infrastructure and the technical service are poor, and apps have a lot of failures.
		• Free urban parking lots for bikes and electric motorcycles with charging points (to overcome the charging at home or work).
		More electric bike and scooter lanes, and safer lanes.
Improv	vements	 Fast charging points well distributed throughout urban and road areas.
		 Managing the search for charging points, availability, occupancy and conservation status in a reliable way.
		• Standardized charging points for all EVs, including a simple and reliable payment process.
		• Norway is the country with the most charging points and connectors per inhabitant (1/2,000), including TESLA charger network.
		• Spain is the country with less charging points (including superchargers). Regarding connectors, there are as much as in Germany.
	Barrie	• In general, there is an unequal distribution of charging points; more concentration in cities and richer regions.
Chargers distribut	ition and	 In Germany, there seems to be a more equitable distribution throughout the territory.
Typology	/	• The amount of chargers per inhabitant in similar in Germany (1/10,000) and Spain (1/9,000).
		• Study on the distribution needs of charging points.
	Improve	 More EV charging points (faster charging) on the road, and not so much in urban centers.
	ts	Equitable distribution all around the different territories



Table 14: Delphi questionnaire's most relevant results

Most relevant results				
	Management	Cities main concerns are: Increase locations, Promote the public transport, Easy access, and Users friendly app and payments		
Urban mobility plans	Priorities &	 Main pending improvements related to charging needs are: Good coverage, Availability of AC charging infrastructure on the (small) neighbourhood level, Overnight parking, Shop & charge, Streetlight-parking. The technology is not mature enough; EVs with current technology are only feasible for specific uses. 		
	Improvements	Environmental issue inadequately addressed: congestion reduction. It requires urban planning and public transport.		
-	Cities charging infrastructure's technical features	 Between 6-12 % of all parking spaces should be equipped with charging possibility to sustain an electrified fleet in the city. Key locations for charging stations: Shopping malls, Parking lots, Gas stations, Curb side, Public parking lots & Mobility hubs. The most important features are: Speed of the load in the vehicle, and Normal credit/debit card paying. Sockets Type2-ChaDeMo-CCS and AC/DC charging technology: the two most implemented current features. Location, Interoperability and Standardization: the most important issues for improving the charging points. 		
Supporting Technologies EMSP & CPO	Services for users	 To lower the charging power depending on the service package that customer is using. MSPs consider key features: The speed of the charge and Normal credit/debit card paying option MSPs consider interesting features: Minimum time, Lowest price, and Maximum percentage of green energy. Service remotely accessed: user starts the charging via mobile application and the points are operating 24/7. 		
	Information flow	 MSP-CPO communication protocol: via phone and email, or using the system Open Charge Alliance. DSOs do not send any data. They have their own energy meters. A fast and accurate power metering to authenticate the changes in power (up- or downshift in power). Frequently the voltage drops and the constant exchange of information is needed. The type of data for sharing is: In demand stress situations, Power limitations, Flexible pricing, V2G requirements, Energy origin /energy mix, and Energy amount to supply. 		
Charging Point Operators protocols EMSP & CPO		 Currently, the used protocols are: OCPI 2.2 and OCPI 2.0. Other used versions: OCPP-J 1.6 and OCPP-S 1.5. OCPI 2.2 protocol allows communication of the maximum charging power in kW to the EMPs. OCPI 2.2 supports the concept of roaming hubs with different sub-operators. Improved releases with more roles and smart charging options are required. USER-CHI charging infrastructure should be OCPP compliant. 		
Charging management DSO		 Most common features of the current systems: Charging point status, Power limitation, Amount of energy to supply, and Monitoring of usage of charging. stations. CPOs: dynamic charging management could be advantageous, as facilitates cost optimization. The most frequent parameters for fixing the fees are: Power supplied (kWh) and Parking time. 		



- The buy of electricity with fixed price and fully renewable is a current practice.
- Additional information provision is under discussion among CPOs.
- Information options positively valued: Ecological footprint, Reduction in CO₂ emissions, Charge planning, Time the charging infrastructure is blocked by a non-charging car, Electricity mix, and User preferences.

Table 15: Field Diary's most relevant results

Most relevant results				
User profile		• EV driver's profile: man (80%), between 26-55 years old (70%), high school or college degree background (63%), with 1-2 years of experience (42%), urban driver (46%) with Its own car (71%).		
Charging process rating		• The users of EVs are highly satisfied with the EV experience (average of 4.08 out of 5). Almost all report that they will buy an electric vehicle again.		
		• The use of the electric car requires charging planning for charges out of home. The use of apps is a requirement for them.		
	Planning	• Many different apps are available with very diverse functionalities. Currently, not all of them offer reliable navigation, location and booking of charging points.		
	Access & Authentication	• Once the reservation has been done and reached the charging point, in many cases the driver finds the place occupied.		
Charging		• Some users claim that charging without subscription would be an improvement (no personal data and paying with credit card).		
experience	Charging process	 During charging, EV users do activities such as: have a coffee, shop, work, go to the park with the children, or waiting in the car. Monitoring features (remaining time for charging, percentage of charge in real time, service interruption alarm) are required. 		
	LEV's charging process	• The use of the LEV does not require planning, so the app is not used regularly. Charging is done at homes, although they demand a more extensive, public and free charging infrastructure.		
Problems		• Most frequent problems: the booked charging station is occupied, lack of charging points around home and in the highway, public charging points out of order, lack of efficient charging points (limited power, excessive charging time and few ultrafast chargers.		
Improv	vements	 Most frequent proposals: the increase of the charging points in the city and in highways, improving usability and power (speed). Other improvement proposals: to increase the performance of the current infrastructure. 		
Gend	er keys	• Almost all female participants have children, only one of them is over 55 years old. Driving frequency is similar to the global sample but their experience with an electric vehicle is slightly lower, and women use smaller vehicles (Renault Zoe, Nissan Leaf,). The global data represents women's concerns.		



4.5 Survey

Annex 5: Survey's results report includes the full report of the results obtained in the survey. The results presented in this section are the most relevant answers, selected by importance and repetitiveness, of those expressed by the drivers and riders from six different countries, that participated in the survey.

4.5.1 EVs

The total EV sample is **688 EV users**, distributed among 6 countries: Finland, Germany, Hungary, Italy, Norway and Spain. (*Table 4*).

Considering geographical issues, we can divide the sample into three blocks:

- The North of Europe (Finland and Norway) is the 18,3% of sample.
- Central Europe (Germany and Hungary) is the 41,6% of sample.
- The South of Europe (Italy and Spain) is the 40,1% of sample.

The sample is not stratified (neither by gender, nor age, nor geographic distribution), therefore the representation in terms of gender and age are geographically distributed according to the EV driver profile.

The sample is geographically concentrated in the capitals or main cities of each country studied. In addition, participants are also located in industrialized and wealthy areas of studied countries, as shown in *Figure 35*.

In Italy, the sample is concentrated in the Northern area, specifically in the Lombardy region, and also in the main cities such as Milan and Rome.

In Hungary, participants are mainly concentrated in the capital, Budapest.

In Germany, the sample is concentrated in the main cities such as Berlin, Munich, Frankfurt, Colonia and Hamburg. Above all, the largest concentration is in the West (North Rhine-Westphalia).

In Norway and Finland, the sample is concentrated in the main cities such as Helsinki and Turku (Finland), or Oslo and Bergen in Norway.

Finally, in Spain the sample is concentrated in the main cities such as Madrid, Barcelona and Valencia.





Figure 35: Distribution of EV drivers' sample

Age and Gender

Regarding participants per gender, the percentage of men is 61% and of women 39%. If we compare the number of EV drivers and ICEV drivers per gender, differences increase in Germany, Hungary and Norway. On the contrary, Italy and Spain minimize differences between men and women with the EV (*Figure 36*).







Figure 37: Age differences between EV drivers and ICEV drivers

According to age, 71% of participants are between **25 and 45 years old**, and 56% are less than 35 years old. If we compare the sample of EV and ICEV drivers, EV drivers are younger than ICEV drivers (*Figure 37*).

Profile of EV driver

Most of respondents drive alone (57.6%) or with the family (51.3%). Only in the case of Spain, participants drive with the family (partner or partner with children) or with children rather than alone (*Table 16*). In Spain and Italy, the percentages of *driving with children* is significantly higher than in other countries. This result seems to be related with that shown in *Figure 36*, stating that in Spain and Italy there are as many women as man using EVs.

Table 16: EV's profile



- In **Norway** there are no women who share a car.
 - In **Italy**, there are more men than women who go alone, and when they travel as a family, the man drives.

Regarding the **educational background**, **56.5%** of those surveyed (EV drivers) **have higher education**, against 41.3% of ICEV drivers. Therefore, **EV drivers have higher education than ICEV drivers**.



Figure 38: Differences in It is my property between EV drivers and ICEV drivers



Figure 39: Most used car brands of EVs

The EV users **drive 5-7 days a week and the EV is its property**. ICEV drivers use their own car in a similar way (5-7 days a week and they are proprietaries), what suggests that the EV substitutes the ICEV.

On the other hand, **the EV driver is diverse in mobility resources**, as he uses different vehicle's technologies, in any case more than ICEV drivers (*Figure 38*).

The most used EV car are from premium manufacturers (high-end brands). These brands are (*Figure 39*) BMW (27,5%), Audi (22,1%) and Tesla (16,3%).

Satisfaction, Best and Worst aspects of EVs

The satisfaction level with the EV is high, 4.4 out of 5.



Table 17: Satisfaction level per geographical area



- Satisfaction in Southern Europe is 4.5 on average
- Satisfaction in Central Europe is 4.5 on average
- In **Northern Europe** (Finland and Norway) **the average is lower (4.2**). They are more critical.

EV drivers participating in the survey consider that best aspects of EVs (*Figure 40*) are *Sustainable / No emissions to the local environment* (63.1%), *Economical to use* (35.9%) and *Silent* (30.8%).

Figure 40: Best valued aspects of EVs by EV drivers

	Sustainable	41.7%
1		25.0%
	Economical to use	35,9%
	Silent	30,8%
	Easy to use	24,6%
	Driving comfort	24,1%
	No emissions to the local environment	21,4%
and the second second	Charging the car at home	17,3%
SI	Conscience	15,1%
	Speed	14,2%
	Fast acceleration	11,2%
	Softness	9,9%
	Lighter to ride	9,0%
	Nice	4,4%
	Sensitivity	3.9%
	Reliable	3,2%

On the contrary, the worst valued aspects of EV (*Figure 41*) are *it's an expensive car* (35.3%), *low autonomy* (27.2%) and *low duration of batteries* (25.1%).



Figure 41: Worsts valued aspects of EVs by EV drivers



	It's an expensive car	35,3%
	Low autonomy	27,2%
	Low duration of batteries	25,1%
	Few charging points	21,1%
	The batteries maintenance is expensive	20,8%
ï	It is necessary to have a plan to charge the car for occasional	20,8%
l	 Longer journeys Autonomy depends on external factors, like temperature, 	19,8%
1	Long charging time	11,8%
	Electric vehicle charging parking lots are occupied.	. 11,6%
	Hard to get the needed maintenance service	11,2%
	Charge prices are high	10,5%
	Insufficient and unevenly distributed infrastructure	6,7%
	Incompatibility exists between networks and chargers	5.8%
	Poor quality of the charging points: slowness,	5.7%
	The road infrastructure is in poor condition	5.2%
	I have no chance to charge the EV	3.1%

Table 18 summarizes the differences between EV drivers and ICEV drivers when assessing the EV.

Table 18: Main differences assessing the EV

	Best as	aspects of EV		
	• The	The differences between ICEV and EV drivers' ratings are:		
		0	ICEV drivers consider it to be <i>Economical to use</i> more than EV drivers	
		0	Driving comfort is better rated by EVs	
		0	Questions related to Sustainability are best valued by EV drivers	
k vs 🙈 o		0	The main motivation of EV drivers would be related to sustainability and ecology	
	Worst a	rst aspects of EV		
	• EV	EV drivers consider the aspect it's an expensive car more critical than ICEV drivers		
	• ICE	V drivers consider the aspects related to the autonomy of the batteries more tical; <i>Low autonomy</i> and <i>Low duration of batteries</i> are more critical for them		
	• Lik	ewis argin	rise, EV drivers consider the following aspects more critical: <i>Electric vehicle</i> <i>jing parking lots are occupied</i> and <i>Charge prices are high</i>	



Consumer's purchase intention

93.7% of the sample of EV drivers would buy an EV again (*Figure 42*). The countries of Northern Europe (Finland and Norway) are those which show a lowest predisposition to buy an EV again (*Figure 43*). Anyway, values are high enough: Finland has a 3.19 average, and Norway has a 3.40 average.

EV users employ the vehicle in *Urban / Interurban area: I'm a user with my own vehicle* (54.2%); in Norway, this percentage is significantly higher (72%). Most of the respondents have been using the EV during the last two years (*have / use EV for 1-2 years*, 49.7%, and *less than 1 year*, 28.2%).



Figure 42: EV driver purchase intention







Table 19 presents a purchase intention comparison of EV drivers and ICEV drivers. There is consensus among drivers for buying an EV as their next vehicle, although regarding the use of the vehicle, ICEV drivers employ it more for long distances.

Table 19: Purchase intention of EV drivers and ICEV drivers

- Both EV and ICEV drivers would buy an EV as their next car.
- 48 sector with the sample of EV driver in front of 72.7% of the sample of the ICEV drivers.
 - More professionals use EV than ICEV, and ICEV drivers use it more for *long* distance: I'm user with my own vehicles.

Electromobility plans

According to survey respondents (*Figure 44*), the most relevant aspects that the new generation of charging stations must have are:

- Standardization of technical components (32.4%)
- Easy access to the charging points and properly signalized (27,9%)
- Automatic user detection in the charging point (25,6%)
- Availability of charging infrastructure on the (small) neighborhood level (25,4%)
- Interoperability at European level (23,5%)

Figure 44: Most relevant aspects of new charging stations

0	Standardization of technical components	32,4%
	Easy access to the charging points and properly signalized	27,9%
	Automatic user detection in the charging point	25,6%
	Availability of charging infrastructure on the (small) neighborhood level	25,4%
	Interoperability at European level	23,5%
THIN ST	Excellent availability (multiple chargers on one location)	21,8%
	Increase charging points locations	20,8%
All areas	Availability of charging infrastructure on the Overnight parking, Shop & charge and Streetlight-parking	17,3%
	Registration and payment in an application	16,9%
	Regular payment methods	13,4%
	Roaming	12,8%
	Other	0,7%



In addition, EV users expect within the next 3 years to have access to between 200 and 1000 charging points in their city (56,2%).

Charging infrastructures elements and technologies

Figure 45 presents the most common sockets per country, employed to charge the EVs. The most used sockets are *Sockets Type2* (30,2%) and *Tesla Supercharger* (27.2%). On the other hand, *Table 20* describes which are the most common sockets employed per geographical area. *Sockets Type2* and *Schucko (EU plug)* are the most employed system all around EU.

Table 20: Most used sockets per geographical area



- Most sockets used in North of Europe (Finland and Norway) are Sockets Type2, Schuko (EU plug), Tesla Supercharger
- Most sockets used in **Central Europe** (Germany and Hungary) are **Sockets Type2**, **Schuko (EU plug)**
- Most sockets used in **Suth of Europe** (Italy and Spain) are **Tesla Supercharger**, **Sockets Type2**, **Schuko (EU plug)**.



Figure 45: Most used sockets per country

Service features

The main features of the system and the service that users employ today are (from highest to lowest percentage):

• Charging point status occupied/unoccupied/in maintenance, blocked, charging, reserved (43.3%)


- Monitoring of usage of charging stations in place (27.0%)
- Contactless payment (22.0%)
- Power limitation for obtain a lower price (21.4%)
- Complex micro-mobility backend services for Light Electric Vehicles (including monitoring, user interface, payment, integration with other smart city backend services) (18.2%)
- Consumption data of charge session (18.0%)

Table 21 presents the most relevant differences per country, of the system features employed by the users.

Table 21: Differences among countries in the system main features



- In **Italy**, the use of: *Pre-reservation* stands out.
- In **Hungary**, the use of: *Energy availability* and *Display at the charging point* stands out.

On the other hand, the features that users claim to be more interested in are (from highest to lowest percentage):

- Charging point status occupied/unoccupied/in maintenance, blocked, charging, reserved (28.9%)
- Complex micro-mobility backend services for LEV (25.9%)
- Monitoring of usage of charging stations in place (25.6%)
- Power limitation for obtain a lower Price (21.5%)
- Pre-booking (20.2%)
- Contactless payment (18.2%)

Table 22: Differences among countries in the features the users are more interested in



- In **Spain**, there is greater interest in *Total load in minimum time*
- In Norway, there is more interest in Total charge at the lowest price





Figure 46: Differences between the features they employ actually and the features they are more interested in

Figure 46 presents the differences between the features that users employ today and the features they are more interested in. The graph evidences two key areas standing out:

- **Zone of Excellence**: where are the features (employed today and those that condense more interest) which concentrate users preferences (three higher rates). These features are related with an excellence service, and they are:
 - Charging point status occupied/unoccupied/in maintenance, blocked, charging, reserved)
 - Monitoring of usage of charging stations in place
 - Power limitation for obtain a lower Price
- Zone of Progress: features to be addressed by priority due to their high interest in them. These features are:
 - Complex micro-mobility backend services for Light Electric Vehicles (inc. monitoring, user interface, payment, integration with other smart city backend services)
 - Pre-booking

Regarding the criteria for fixing fees, survey's participants stated that the main criteria employed today are:

- Time (considering day of the week, and the time range) (65%)
- Supplied power (54%)

The users stablished as wishing criteria:

- Parking (the time occupying the parking slot without being charging) (46%)
- Supplied power (42%)

Charging experience



According to *Figure 47*, where EV is most charged is *At home* (62%) and *Public parking* (31%). Where the EV is least charged is *At highways* (15%), *Private parking* (16%) and *Shopping center* (17%). This result highlights the idea that the availability of a charging point at home (private or public), is critical for using an EV.

In all the countries surveyed, charging away from home takes usually *Between 31 and 60 minutes* (33.6%) or *Between 26 and 30 minutes* (24.0%). In all surveyed countries, the charging power is *Between 6 and 25 kW* (37.5%) or *Between 26 and 50 kW* (34.2%).



Table 23 shows differences among countries in the places where drivers usually charge. Regarding gender differences,

Table 24 presents some topics that are perceived differently between man and woman.

Table 23: Differences among countries in places where usually charge



- In Finland, EVs are charged more in Supermarkets and Shopping centers
- In **all countries** it is charged in *Public Parking* **except in Hungary and Norway**, which is charged less.
- In **Spain** it is the only country where it is significantly charged in *Private Parking*, more than in the rest of the countries.
- At Work, EVs are charged in all countries except Italy and Hungary



Table 24: Gender differences related to EV charge

	• Women park more in <i>private parking;</i> it could be related to security
n vs	• Likewise, in Norway more women than men want points in supermarkets, perhaps because they go shopping more.
	• Women would like to have more charging points <i>At home;</i> it could be related to security.

In all the surveyed countries, there is a lack of charging points (*Figure 48*) in *Public parking* (52%), *Supermarkets* (40%) and *At highways* (41%). These locations correspond to places where users usually charge, what involves that the lack of charging points at there, is a relevant improvement in the charging network.





Figure 49 presents the main activities performed by the users while charging. Users mainly make *Purchases* (51%), *Stay at home* (46%) or Work (42%). Only users of two countries (Germany and Norway) *Stay at home* during the charging, as a first option.





Figure 49: Activities performed by users while charging

On the other hand, the main problems and challenges that confront users when charging their EV at CPs are (from highest to lowest percentage):

- Charging time is limited (30 minutes is not time enough for 100% charge) (30.4%)
- One plug per charging point. Simultaneous charge of EVs unavailable (27.0%)
- Lack of charging points (27.0%)
- Lack of information about availability (18.2%)
- Malfunction, lack of maintenance (18.0%)

In addition, Table 25 shows the main differences in the type of activities performed by women and men while charging.

Table 25: Differences in the activities performed by men and women

- Women charge more EV during Purchases (58%) than Stay at home (44%)
- Men charge while *Stay at home* (47%) and while make *Purchases* (47%)
- Men consider the *Low charging speed* point more problematic than women

In relation to charging apps (*Table 26*), their average rating is very high (4.2 out of 5). The most used apps are *Tesla* (23%) and *Easycharger* (15%). Some users do not use any app (14%), probably because they regularly do the same route.

The best rated apps are: *Virta* (4.5), *AMB* (4.5), *K-lataus* (4.5). *Ibil, Nextcharge, Duferco* and *Enel X* are also very well rated, with 4.4 out of 5.



Table 26: Apps rating per geographical area

	• In general, the North of Europe (Finland and Norway) are most critical than other parts of Europe (South and central Europe).
1	• Average of App rate in North of Europe: 3.8
Sec.	• Average of App rate in Central Europe: 4.2
	• Average of App rate in South of Europe: 4.3

Figure 50: Ratings for the charging process per country



Figure 50 presents the ratings per country for diverse actions related to the charging process. The mean average values for these ratings are:

- The average of adequacy of charging points is 3.9 out of 5.
- The average of the suitable plugs is 4.0 out of 5.
- The average of the waiting time is 3.6 out of 5.
- The average of the quality of information about the charge is 3.8 out of 5.



In the countries of Northern of Europe, all ratings related to the charging process (*Figure 50*) are lower than in the rest of the countries in the study. This is a trend that appears along all the study.

Figure 51: Best proposals to improve the charging process

	Increase the amount of fast charging points	
1	Several plugs per charging point or simultaneous charge of EVs	1
1	Customization of the charging speed / charging time	ġ.
Real	ime information about availability, type of plug, and booking list for next 30 minutes and on room	
	Monitoring the charging progress on a mobile app	8.
	Increase the amount of charging points in public parking lots	đ.
8. Best ideas to im	rove the Efficient procedure for communicating failures&mailunctions of charging	R.
arging process	points Priority for electric vehicles	5
	Universal plugs or availability of all plug models	10
	Incentives: highways for free, exclusive parking lots for EVs, 300	r£.
and the second	Charging points at the workplaces	
100	increase the amount of charging points on the road	
AD	Penalizations for drivers that use charging points as parking lots	
SET	Charging point activates when connecting the plug or through a mobile application	
	Mobile phone's alert when charging time is exceeded in 30 minutes	
SIC	Improve maintenance and improve facilities (e.g. a roof for the rain)	
	Mobile phone's alert when charging process is completed	
	Other (please specify)	E.

Best proposals to improve the charging process collected in all countries, are presented in *Figure 51* The ideas that concentrate a higher consensus are:

- Increase the amount of fast charging points (39.5%)
- Several plugs per charging point or simultaneous charge of EVs (30.5%)
- Customization of the charging speed / charging time (26.2%)
- Real time information about availability, type of plug, and booking list for next 30 minutes and on (25.6%)
- Monitoring the charging progress on a mobile app (22.8%)
- Increase the amount of fast charging points (20.2%)

4.5.2 ICEVs

A total number of 1,108 people (*Table 4*) has responded to the Internal combustion engine vehicle (ICEV) questionnaire. The participants are distributed between 55.2% men and 44.3% women. The most representatives age range are 25-35 years old with 32.3% of the users and 36-45 years old (23.9%). And,



the most representative educational background of the ICEV driver sample are: High school degree (31.1%); College degree (.75) and Master degree (31.5%).



Most of the participants drive alone (56.5%) or with the family (52.7%). Only in the case of Spain is the most frequent mode of driving with a mate (69%), rather than alone (51%).

Regarding the experience of ICEV use, the ICEV is the type of vehicle with the highest frequency of use and the highest percentage of ownership: 84.6% of ICEV drivers are owner of the vehicle; 40.8% of ICEV drivers use the vehicle 5-7 days a week. The ICEVs are used for urban/interurban area (64.3%) and long distance (33.4%).

The most frequent ICEVs brands are (*Figure 52*): Toyota (13.2%), BMW (10.9%) and Audi (10.7%), although in Spain and Hungary Opel, Citroën, Ford and Renault are also among the most popular.



Figure 53: EV purchase intention (ICEV)



ŝ

Results: Consumer purchase intention (ICEV)



The satisfaction of ICEV drivers with their vehicles is a 4.4 on average on a scale of 1 to 5. Italy stands out with the highest average valuations (4.7) and Finland with the lowest (4.1). But the ICEV driver is open to the purchase of the EV (*Figure 53*). 72.7% of the participants consider purchase an electric vehicle (EV) in the future versus 27.3% that would not purchase an EV.

Figure 54: Best valued aspects of the electric vehicles (ICEV)

1	Economical to use	I CON
	Suchainschie	2404
1	East to use	12896
1	Easy to use	12010
	Saent	12970
2	No emissions to the local environment	2975
Results: Best aspects of the	Charging the car at home	17.95
electric vehicles (ICEV)	Driving comfort	15%
	Speed	9%
Please, detail the best aspects of the electric vehicles: (a	Fast acceleration	8%
maximum of 3)	Conscience	7%
	Softness	7%
and the first of the second se	Lighter to ride	7%
The man	Nice	13%
	Sensitivity	2%
	Reliable	1%
	Other (please specify)	16%



From the point of view ICEV drivers, the most relevant positive aspects⁵ of electric vehicles are (*Figure 54*):

- Economical to use
- Sustainable
- Easy to use
- Silent
- No emissions to the local environment

Figure 55: Worst valued aspects of the electric vehicles (ICEV)

/	Low duration of batteries	36,49
	Low autonomy	33,89
	It's an expensive car	26,5%
	The batteries maintenance is expensive	21,9%
* It is necessary	to have a plan to charge the car for occasional longer journeys	20.5%
	Autonomy depends on external factors, like temperature,	18,5%
Results: Worst aspects of the	Few charging points	17,2%
electric vehicles (ICEV)	Long charging time	12,6%
	I have no chance to charge the EV	19,3%
Please, detail the worst aspects of the electric vehicles: (a	Hard to get the needed maintenance service	16,6%
maximum of 2)	The road infrastructure presents deficiencies	≣6,0%
	is maintenance Charge prices are high	16,0%
AND A DEPARTMENT	Incompatibility exists between networks and chargers	14,6%
Maria Part	Poor quality of the charging points: slowness,	14,0%
	Electric vehicle charging parking lots are occupied	14,0%
1 252	Insufficient and uneventy distributed infrastructure	13,3%
the second second	The road infrastructure is in poor condition	\$3,3%
	Other (please specify)	12.6%

 $^{^{\}rm 5}$ The most relevant aspects are those which have a response rate greater than 20%





Figure 56: Required improvements for the electric vehicles (ICEV)

On the contrary, *Figure 55* shows, from the point of view ICEV drivers, the worst aspects of electric vehicles:

- Low duration of batteries
- Low autonomy
- Expensive car
- Batteries maintenance is expensive
- The need to have a plan to charge the car for occasional longer journeys

From the point of view ICEV drivers, the main improvements required by electric vehicles are (Figure 56):

- Reduce the price of purchase (58.3 %)
- Increased autonomy of the car, batteries with more autonomy (40.8 %.)
- Incentives for purchase such as financial aid, or tax incentives (34.9 %)
- More fast chargers and better spread (30.1 %)

Although most of the worst valued aspects of EVs and required improvements focus on the car itself, some of them refer to infrastructure. In this sense, *More fast chargers and better spread (Figure 56)* is a direct reference to infrastructure, while *It is necessary to have a plan to charge the car for occasional longer journeys (Figure 55)* is an indirect reference.



4.5.3 LEVs

A total amount of 941 people (*Table 4*) has responded to the electric vehicle questionnaire. The participants are distributed between 60.4% men and 39.4% women. The most representative age range is 25-35 years old, which comprehends 45% of the users.



Figure 57: Age profile of LEV, ICEV and EV drivers

The most widely used LEV is the e-bike, which is ridden by 46.9% of the participants in the study. Mainly, the LEV used are in owned. The users have a low experience in the use of these vehicles: the 45.2% have 1-2 years driving and 32.7% less than 1 year.

Figure 57 shows that the electric vehicle driver profile (LEV and EV) is slightly younger than the internal combustion vehicle (ICEV) driver profile.



Figure 58: Drivers who also are LEV riders

69.5% of the EV drivers also drive LEVs (*Figure 58*). In the case of ICEV drivers, only 30.5% of them ride also a LEV. This result suggests that EV drivers are more committed with sustainable mobility.

12

1



Figure 59: Best valued features for LEVs

C	Great for city mobility, short distances	43,6%
It is a cheap	mobility solution (no parking lot, taxes,)	38.6%
Alternative at cities for car	rs, bikes, public transport or move by walking	29,6%
	Time savings	26,2%
6	Easy charging at home and at office;	22,6%
Results: Best aspects of the	Easy to store in a very small place	17.8%
light electric vehicles (LEV)	Light	12,5%
Please, detail the best aspects of the light electric vehicles:	Funny, freedom experience	18.6%
(helect 1)	Low maintenance	Z.on
	Silent	9.7%
	Great riding experiences	8,1%
	No pollution; wellbeing	6.3%
	Great for injured people (e.g. knee)	2,9%
	High autonomy	1,7%
A A LAND	Other (please sensibl)	0.3%

The best valued features of the LEV are (Figure 59):

- Great for city mobility; short distances
- It is a cheap mobility solution (no parking lot, taxes, ...)
- Alternative at cities for cars, bikes, public transport or move by walking
- Time savings
- Easy charging at home and at office



Figure 60: Worst valued features for LEVs

	It is not good for long distances or uneven areas	24,5%
	Insecure for riding on the road, among cars	22,4%
	Lack of legislation	22,1%
<u></u>	Purchasing cost	21,0%
	Dangerous for podestrians	19,7%
Results: Problems of the light	Dangerous for who drives it	19,1%
Results: Problems of the light	Coexistence problems and circulation problems	18,3%
electric vehicles (LEV)	Battery maintenance is expensive	16,0%
Please, detail the problems of the light electric vehicles:	Real autonomy is lower than	15.9%
(select 5)	Poor autonomy; only urban use	8,8%
Link	of shock absorbers and small wheels(uncomfortable)	2.4%
re this	very easy to have a tire puncture, if the pressure is low	業7%
	Batteries degradation and battery problems	8,1%
	Expensive insurance	4,8%
	Low speed	8.8%
	Heavier vehicles due to battery.	4.3%
0-0-0	Poor service; poor technical support	3,5%
The second se	Other Internet encoded	Carloss Street

The main problems related to LEVs are (Figure 60):

- It is not good for long distances or uneven areas
- Insecure for riding on the road, among cars
- Lack of legislation
- Purchasing cost



Figure 61: Improvements for LEVs



In both cases, the results presented in Figure 59 and Figure 60 are consistent with the results obtained in Netnography, which are summarized in *Table 13*.

Figure 61 shows the main improvements for LEV identified by the users. The most relevant improvements of those presented in the graph are:

- Free urban parking lots for e-bikes and electric motorcycles with charging points
- More electric bike and scooter lanes, and safer lanes
- Specific areas, with parking lots to charge electric motorcycles
- Fast charging points well distributed throughout urban and road areas

4.6 Co-creation

4.6.1 In-person co-creation workshop

Annex 6: Co-creation's results report includes the full report of the results obtained in the co-creation workshop. In this section, we present a sketch per concept product generated during the co-creation workshop performed at IBV. To create these sketches, we have employed the prototypes generated by the users during the session, and the key concepts that guided the design of these prototypes.



Figure 62: INCAR user app and key concepts related to this sketch



Main concepts: Routing & CPs Mapping, User profile (Cars&Drivers), Charging utilities, Monitoring the charge, Paying options, Charging series

The sketch including the proposal for concept design of INCAR app is presented in *Figure 62*. This design is built on the following key concepts:

- It is not necessary subscription for using the app; the user can pay with a credit card with an Invited profile.
- A routing utility, which shows available CPs on a map
- User profile include all user's cars, and different drivers.
- The system matches the compatible CPs with user's cars
- The system shows all the options offered by the infrastructure when charging (user preferences and monitoring data)
- The system stores information related to charges, and generates outputs for the user (e.g. car consumption)

Figure 63 shows a concept design for the *Station of the future (SotF)*. This concept design is addressed by the idea of a multi-activity area, where different activities (including leisure and professional) can be performed. LEVs charges and EV chargers are assorted in differentiated zones, and the terminal is an intermodal station. The future mobility is sustainable, so the whole building is in harmony with the natural environment.



<text><text><text><text><text><text><text>

Figure 63: Station of the future and key concepts related to the sketch

Main concepts: Charging EV&LEV, Intermodal, Sustainable, Additional services, Civic center

Figure 64 and *Figure 65* present the proposal generated for the new charging technologies: INSOC, a solar charging station for LEVs (eBikes, eScooter and eMotobike), and INDUCAR, an inductive charging station for cars. Users demand a secure parking for its bike, as it can be stored by night (no charge). The design is addressed by a big cover for placing the solar panels, and sustainability is also a critical concept for solar mobility. These facilities can take advantage of urban furniture, creating a modal hub if they are placed close a to a public transport station, or just an isolated charging point if the pole of a street light is employed. On the other hand, the inductive charge is foreseen in two basic modalities: dynamic charge and static charge. Dynamic charge is a on route charge, managed from the mobile phone, in signalized sections of the highway. Payment modality is an unsolved issue, as it could be based on different parameters (number of kilometers run, measured energy transferred, or time expended on the system). Static charge is a by-night charge for city neighborhoods, or a charge for long term parking in an airport or a train station.





Figure 64: INSOC station and keys concepts related to this sketch

Main concepts: Solar surface, Secure parking, Modal hub, Sustainable mobility, Urban Furniture



Figure 65: INDUCAR station and main concepts related to this sketch

Main concepts: Dynamic charge, Static charge, Long-term parking, On route information, App utilities



4.6.2 Virtual co-creation workshop

Figure 66 presents the general assessment obtained by the product concepts generated from in-person workshop results (*Figure 62, Figure 63,*

Figure 64 and *Figure 65* present the proposal generated for the new charging technologies: INSOC, a solar charging station for LEVs (eBikes, eScooter and eMotobike), and INDUCAR, an inductive charging station for cars. Users demand a secure parking for its bike, as it can be stored by night (no charge). The design is addressed by a big cover for placing the solar panels, and sustainability is also a critical concept for solar mobility. These facilities can take advantage of urban furniture, creating a modal hub if they are placed close a to a public transport station, or just an isolated charging point if the pole of a street light is employed. On the other hand, the inductive charge is foreseen in two basic modalities: dynamic charge and static charge. Dynamic charge is a on route charge, managed from the mobile phone, in signalized sections of the highway. Payment modality is an unsolved issue, as it could be based on different parameters (number of kilometers run, measured energy transferred, or time expended on the system). Static charge is a by-night charge for city neighborhoods, or a charge for long term parking in an airport or a train station.

Figure 64, *Figure 65*). All values but one (*Utilities and functionalities required* by *SotF*) are over 3, but in half of the criteria these values were not uniformly distributed, what involves that some participants strongly agreed with the proposal but some others strongly disagree. These are the cases for the *Attractive features* of *INCAR*, *Expectations* and *Utilities* of the *SotF*, and *Expectations*, *Utilities* and *Attractive features* of *INDUCAR*. All these aspects should be reviewed in order to investigate what features make some users reject this proposal.

Figure 66: Assessment's results of product concepts

INCAR user app: The proposed concept covers/includes ...











Regarding improvements, *Figure 67* shows the list of features proposed by the participants to improve the product concepts. For INCAR platform participants identified that utilities involving *reservation*, *integration* and *pricing* are critical. In addition, there are interesting contributions like the *integration of INCAR platform in existing apps*, the inclusion of utilities related to the *state of charge of the vehicle battery* and fostering the employment of the platform by employing *gamification* strategies.

Figure 67: Improvements related to product concepts



For participants in the co-creation workshop, the *SotF* is a facility that should have at least two versions: one version for highways where station dimension is not critical, a one version for city centres, characterised by the need of optimising the occupied area. The highways version could include *wireless charging* or *vehicle battery change* as additional services to those presented in *Figure 63*. The *SotF* for city centres should focus on charging and intermodal transport. This facility should include an *intermodal ticketing point*, and a *last mile logistic hub* to facilitate the use of e-vans in city deliveries.



Regarding the INSOC station, there is no a consensus among participants about the improvements to modify the product concept presented in

Figure 64 and *Figure 65* present the proposal generated for the new charging technologies: INSOC, a solar charging station for LEVs (eBikes, eScooter and eMotobike), and INDUCAR, an inductive charging station for cars. Users demand a secure parking for its bike, as it can be stored by night (no charge). The design is addressed by a big cover for placing the solar panels, and sustainability is also a critical concept for solar mobility. These facilities can take advantage of urban furniture, creating a modal hub if they are placed close a to a public transport station, or just an isolated charging point if the pole of a street light is employed. On the other hand, the inductive charge is foreseen in two basic modalities: dynamic charge and static charge. Dynamic charge is a on route charge, managed from the mobile phone, in signalized sections of the highway. Payment modality is an unsolved issue, as it could be based on different parameters (number of kilometers run, measured energy transferred, or time expended on the system). Static charge is a by-night charge for city neighborhoods, or a charge for long term parking in an airport or a train station.

Figure 64. Reviewing all the contributions, we can extract the idea that *modularity* (*smaller solutions*) could be a very interesting design strategy for this facility, in the sense of developing a compact unit for charging a reduced number of vehicles (e.g. module for 4 vehicles), that can be mounted together in a given location, in order to achieve the required capacity. *Battery swapping, vandalism proof* and *private and sharing use* are also interesting features to enrich the concept. On the other hand, there are some technical restrictions to consider (*dso grid permit, grid connection*) when installing solar facilities in a public area where electric infrastructures exist.

In the case of *INDUCAR* (*Figure 65*) to guarantee the access to the facility (*park reserved to ev, control protection system*) is critical for most of the participants. This guarantee includes installing physical barriers in order to avoid the use of the parking lot to drivers who are not going to charge the battery, or a system for advising the user once the charge is finished. *Charging cost* was also considered critical for the inductive charge. On the other hand, it was noted by some of the participants that *dynamic charge* is out of the scope of USER-CHI project, and project effort should be concentrated in *static charge*.

4.6.3 Recollective session

Recollective is a commercial software⁶, aimed to power innovative online research projects. Participants in the virtual co-creation workshop, were invited to present news ideas related to the product concepts presented, by participating in a Recollective session that was opened for a week time. The main contributions made by project partners to product concepts are presented in the following paragraphs.

SotF

• Three types of stations of the future must be developed. Stations at city entrances (large intermodal stations), stations in city centers (consolidated areas where it is not possible to

⁶ https://recollective.com/



undertake new infrastructures) and road stations. Each of these modalities has different features.

- The charging station of the future can be incorporated in the existing urban environment, shifting the point of view on the identification of excellent locations rather than on the construction of new structures.
- We should identify key elements which should be always present in the stations of the future (e.g. charging points for EV and LEV, RES, internet connection or smart working positions).
- Others services (shops, leisure centers, parks) have less restrictive requirements, and could be already present in the location chosen for the station.
- The charging station of the future must prevent that utilization is impeded by parking violators. The profitability of charging infrastructure quickly drops if fully charged or non-electric vehicles occupy needed charging spots.

INSOC

- This product faces a big challenge: how to motivate users to use this infrastructure instead of leaving bikes in random places, as is frequent in some countries. This could be overcome by proposing some sort of reward, such as:
 - A discount voucher to use for the next bike rental or similar (if there is a fine, I think people would simply not rent the bike).
 - An integration of additional services such as charging opportunities for personal devices (e.g. smart phone, power banks, bike lights), lockers, a bike repair stand or a tire pump.
- Sun shade canopy or transparent photovoltaic (PV) panels as rain protection over the charging spots.

INDUCAR

- In general, these services access system could be connected to the app, and it is necessary to define how should the payment process work: the user pay before entering the charging lane, the user are subscript and have a fixed fee, ...
- For the static case, it is very important to have systems that prevent those who do not want to recharge the car from using the parking lot.
- For the dynamic case, it is necessary to analyse the viability of this service.



5. Conclusions

Results of user research are very consistent, and even repetitive, in the need of creating a higher performance charging points' network dense enough, that ensures the availability of a charging point once it has been booked in advance remotely. This requirement directly involves two out of three basic components of the electromobility: charging infrastructure and applications. The third component, the electric vehicle, seems to be in another level as users state its satisfaction with a product that, although being expensive, cover the users' expectations and is employed as a substitute product of the ICE vehicles. In addition, users' insights are quite similar regarding to LEVs, as they are perceived as light devices very useful for short city trips.

Survey's results evidence that ICEV drivers and EV drivers focus on different aspects when assessing vehicles. While ICEV drivers emphasize on car performance, EV drivers highlight the charging process. ICEV drivers perceive the batteries' autonomy as critical (more than EV drivers), and consider the EV to be economical. On the other hand, EV drivers consider the driving comfort of their EVs as higher. In any case, most of EV drivers (93.7%) and ICEV drivers (72.7%) would buy an EV as their next car.

If we analyse the results presented in the previous sections under a well-known quality model as the proposed by *Kano* [2], we come to the conclusions that the charging infrastructure and the apps have no yet fulfilled the quality *must-be requirements*. These *must-be requirements* are mainly:

- the availability of a dense charging point network in cities and in highways, including
 promoting the installation of charging points at drivers' home and in public and communal
 parking lots. For professional drivers the city charging network is critical, while for private
 drivers the most critical point is charging when they arrive home, in private chargers or public
 chargers,
- and a procedure for booking a charging point that ensures its availability when the driver arrives.

Not accomplishing the *must-be requirements* involves that the users consider the technology is not mature for the charging infrastructure of EVs, and they are not yet confident with electromobility. These conclusions do not affect LEVs electromobility, as they mainly are charged at home employing the domestic infrastructure.

Following the *Kano model*, we could consider as *one-dimensional requirements* for car electromobility:

- Charging point status: occupied-unoccupied-in maintenance, blocked, charging, or reserved.
- Increase the amount of fast charging points; fast charge in highways.
- Standardization of technical components and signalization
- Automatic user detection in the charging point.
- Between 6-12 % of city parking lots equipped with electric chargers; availability of charging infrastructure on the (small) neighborhood level.
- Include the managing of the charge at home in the apps.



- Paying with credit cards; contactless payment.
- Interoperability among charging points, at European level.
- Employing app's utilities without subscription.
- A unique application for routing, booking and paying; pre-booking.
- Several plugs per charging point or simultaneous charge of EVs.

In addition, *attractive requirements* for car electromobility would be:

- Additional services to perform activities when charging the battery. We could differentiate between:
 - o services at urban charging points, like shopping malls or mobility hubs,
 - services at the charging points on route, in long range trip.

This differentiation could be applied to the concept of SotF, as we should distinguish between services within a city, and services for highways.

- Monitoring utilities like remaining time for charging, percentage of charge in real time, power limitation to obtain a lower price, different criteria for fixing fees, or service interruption alarm, are interesting features for managing the waiting time when charging.
- Sustainability: users perceive electromobility as sustainable, and this value must be present in all the charging process.
- Additional information for the user like minimum charging time, lowest price, maximum percentage of green energy, ecological footprint, reduction in CO₂ emissions, charge planning, time the charging infrastructure is blocked by a non-charging car, and user preferences are considered interesting features by some experts. These extra features require exchange of information among all the actors (EMSPs, CPOs and DSOs) through the protocol OCPI 2.2.

On the hand, for LEVs electromobility we have identified the following *one-dimensional requirements*:

- Specific free charging points for LEVs in urban areas.
- Slighter e-Bikes (they are heavier than conventional bikes).
- Securer e-Scooters.

Regarding attractive requirements, for LEVs we have:

- In general, the EV electromobility *attractive requirements* can be applied to LEV electromobility.
- Complex micro-mobility backend services for LEVs (including monitoring, user interface, payment, integration with other smart city backend services).

Gender issues



Regarding the gender issues, we consider as relevant the following results:

- If we compare the number of EV drivers and ICEV drivers per gender, differences increase in Germany, Hungary and Norway. On the contrary, Italy and Spain minimize differences between men and women with the EV.
- In Spain and Italy, women significantly drive more with children.
- In Norway there are no women who share a car.
- In Italy, there are more men than women who go alone, and when they travel as a family, the man drives.
- Women park more in *private parking*. On the other hand, women would like to have more charging points *At home*. Both results could be related to security.
- Women charge more EV during *Purchases* than *Stay at home*. Men charge while Stay at home (47%) and while make *Purchases* (47%)
- Likewise, in Norway more women than men want points in supermarkets, perhaps because they go shopping more.
- Men consider the *Low charging speed* point more problematic than women.

USER-CHI products

The requirements presented in the above paragraphs following the *Kano model*, should be considered in the development of the USER-CHI products. With this aim, each USER-CHI product is related with those requirements which should be taken under consideration, in the following paragraphs:

- *CLICK*: Charging Location and Holistic Planning Kit.
 - Between 6-12 % of city parking lots equipped with electric chargers; availability of charging infrastructure on the (small) neighborhood level.
 - Increase the amount of fast charging points in public parking lots
 - A procedure for booking a charging point that ensures its availability when the driver arrives.
 - Paying with credit cards; contactless payment.
 - Services at urban charging points, like shopping malls or mobility hubs.
 - Monitoring tools like remaining time for charging, percentage of charge in real time or service interruption alarm, are interesting features for managing the waiting time when charging.
 - Sustainability: users perceive electromobility as sustainable, and this value must be present in all the charging process.



- Extra features require exchange of information among all the actors (EMSPs, CPOs and DSOs) through the protocol OCPI 2.2.
- The most common sockets are Sockets Type2, Schuko (EU plug), and Tesla Supercharger.
- The most common charging power is *Between 6 kW and 25 kW* or *Between 26 kW* and 50 kW.
- *INCAR*: Interoperability, Charging & Parking Platform.
 - Main concepts driving the INCAR concept: Routing & CPs Mapping, User profile (Cars&Drivers), Charging utilities, Monitoring the charge, Paying options, Charging series.
 - The most used apps for charging are *Tesla* and *Easycharger*, but the best rated apps are *Virta*, *AMB*, and *K-lataus*. These apps should be a reference for INCAR development.
 - *Must be requirements*:
 - Utilities involving reservation, integration (a unique application for routing, booking and paying) and pricing are critical (must be requirements).
 - Employing app's utilities without subscription.
 - One dimensional requirements:
 - Include the managing of the charge at home in the apps.
 - Paying with credit cards; contactless payment.
 - Additional services to perform activities when charging the battery.
 - Fast charge in highways.
 - Specific free charging points for LEVs in urban areas.
 - Interoperability among charging points.
 - Attractive features:
 - The integration of INCAR platform in existing apps, utilities related to the state of charge of the vehicle battery and gamification strategies.
 - Monitoring utilities like remaining time for charging, percentage of charge in real time, power limitation to obtain a lower price, different criteria for fixing fees, or service interruption alarm, are interesting features for managing the waiting time when charging.
 - Additional information for the user like minimum charging time, lowest price, maximum percentage of green energy, ecological footprint, reduction in CO₂ emissions, charge planning, time the charging infrastructure is



blocked by a non-charging car, and *user preferences* are considered interesting features by some experts. These extra features require information exchange among all the actors (EMSPs, CPOs and DSOs) through the protocol OCPI 2.2.

- Sustainability: users perceive electromobility as sustainable, and this value must be present in all the charging process.
- *INSOC*: Integrated Solar-DC charging for LEVs.
 - Main concepts driving the *INSOC* concept: *Solar surface, Secure parking, Modal hub, Sustainable mobility, Urban Furniture.*
 - *Must be requirements*:
 - Technical restrictions to consider (*dso grid permit, grid connection*) when installing solar facilities in a public area where electric infrastructures exist.
 - Secure parking: charging points as secure parking lots.
 - One dimensional requirements:
 - Specific free charging points for LEVs in urban areas.
 - A procedure for booking a charging point that ensures its availability when the driver arrives.
 - Paying with credit cards; contactless payment.
 - Additional services to perform activities when charging the battery.
 - Attractive requirements:
 - Modularity (smaller solutions that can be enlarged easily), Battery swapping, vandalism proof and private and sharing use.
 - Modal hub: the solar charging station is placed close to other transport modalities (public or private).
 - The urban furniture as an existing infrastructure for hosting solar charging points (e.g. streetlights and benches).
 - Monitoring tools like remaining time for charging, percentage of charge in real time or service interruption alarm, are interesting features for managing the waiting time when charging.
 - Sustainability: users perceive electromobility as sustainable, and this value must be present in all the charging process.
- *INDUCAR*: Inductive Charging for e-Cars.
 - Inductive charge has two charging modalities: *Dynamic charge* and *Static charge*.



- Dynamic charge is a on route charge, managed from the mobile phone, in signalized sections of the highway.
- Static charge is a by-night charge for city neighborhoods, or a charge for long term parking in an airport or a train station.

Dynamic charge is out of the scope of USER-CHI project.

- Main concepts driving *INDUCAR* concept: *Static charge*, *Long-term parking*, *On route information*, *App utilities*.
- *Must be requirements*:
 - To guarantee the access to the facility (*park reserved to ev, control protection system*) is critical. This guarantee could include installing physical barriers or a system for advising the user once the charge is finished.
 - *Charging cost* is also critical for the inductive charge.
- One dimensional requirements:
 - Payment should be done with credit cards, although the payment modality is an unsolved issue, as it could be based on different parameters (number of kilometers run, measured energy transferred, or time expended on the system).
 - A unique application for routing, booking and paying.
 - Additional services to perform activities when charging the battery.
- Attractive requirements:
 - Monitoring tools like remaining time for charging, percentage of charge in real time or service interruption alarm, are interesting features for managing the waiting time when charging.
- Sustainability: users perceive electromobility as sustainable, and this value must be present in all the charging process.
- *SotF*: Station of the Future.
 - Main concepts driving the *SotF* concept: *Charging EV&LEV*, *Intermodal*, *Sustainable*, *Additional services*, *Civic center*.
 - the SotF is a facility that should have at least two versions: one version for highways where station dimension is not critical, a one version for city centres, characterised by the need of optimising the occupied area.
 - The highways version could include *wireless charging* or *vehicle battery change* as part of the additional services.



• The *SotF* for city centres should focus on charging and intermodal transport. This facility should include an *intermodal ticketing point*, and a *last mile logistic hub* to facilitate the use of e-vans in city deliveries.





References

- [1] Robert V. Kozinets (1998), "On Netnography: Initial Reflections on Consumer Research Investigations of Cyberculture", in NA - Advances in Consumer Research Volume 25, eds. Joseph W. Alba & J. Wesley Hutchinson, Provo, UT : Association for Consumer Research, Pages: 366-371
- [2] Kano, N., N. Seraku, F. Takahashi and S. Tsuji: "Attractive Quality and Must-be Quality", Hinshitsu. The Journal of the Japanese Society for Quality Control, (April 1984), pp. 39-48.





Annexes





Annex 1: Delphi questionnaire

USER-CHI DELPHI QUESTIONNAIRE I

MAIN OBJECTIVE:

- To describe the main features of the charging devices and supporting applications available today, identifying their main weaknesses and improvement opportunities.
- To identify functionalities and features that overcome the identified weaknesses, and improve the charging process and services that are available today.
- •

CONTENT STRUCTURE:

ELECTROMOBILITY PLANS / Urban Mobility Planners

- Which electric modes of transport are more suitable to be promoted in the urban environment? And which ones for the low-range and the long-range trips?
- What interoperability strategies should be implemented in the urban environment? And in the low-range and the long-range trips?
 - (For example, one strategy could be to create an association of EMSPs and CPOs in the metropolitan area, or to establish cooperation agreements between different providers which operates nearby...)
- Regarding the strategies identified in the precedent question, what type of planning require the charging infrastructure for implementing them?
- Within the planning process of charging stations in your city, which are the current features?



- Sockets (Type2, ChaDeMo, CCS); Charging technology (AC / DC); measure and monitoring systems in real time...
- Number of charging points installed currently
- Strategies of charging points location
- o Users' needs to cover
- In your city, how is the charging infrastructure organized and planned?
 - Who is the responsible to plan strategies, coordinate actions and assign permissions
 - \circ Who is the responsible to build and manage charging stations
 - Who are allowed to build charging infrastructure in the public / private space
- Which are your goals regarding the provision of charging infrastructure within the next 3 years?
 - Number of charging points (e.g. 1 station ...per km², ...per 100 inhabitants, ...at every junction, ...at every gas station, or: 300 charging stations in the city)
 - Location of charging points (in special areas: airport; housing areas; in public space; in living areas; in industrial areas; in every parking lot...)
 - Priority users (e.g. private owners, industrial owners, city administration, car sharing operators, scooter sharing companies, bike owners, cab drivers, delivery services...)

SUPPORTING TECHNOLOGIES / MSP (Mobility Service Provider)

- What communication protocol (and version) are you employing as MSP for communicating with CPOs (Charging Point Operators)? Would you accept a protocol change if it improves your service?
- Which are the main features and characteristics the system you are employing today have?



- Are you interested, as MSP, in adding the following features to your system? Do you consider these features as valuable?
 - The end user has the option of defining a *default charging profile*.
 - (This *default charging profile* involves end user can select some charging options, similar to those listed below:
 - Total charge at minimum time
 - Total charge at lowest price
 - Total charge at maximum percentage of renewable energy)
 - In some situations, the MSP is able to manage the power supplied to a customer by means of smart charging, according to MSP's own criteria.
 (For example, to limit the power supplied to specific groups of users).
- In your opinion, which other features (for end users and for CPOs) need to be developed for improving your service?

CHARGING POINTS / CPO (Charging Point Operator)

- Which communication protocol (and version) are you employing as CPO, for communicating with the poles and the MSPs?
 - OCPI 2.2
 - Strengths:
 - Weaknesses:
 - o OCPP 2.0
 - Strengths:



- Weaknesses:
- o Others:
 - Strengths:
 - Weaknesses:

Would you accept a protocol change if it improves your service?

- Which are the main features the system you are employing today have?
 - Charging point status (occupied / unoccupied), monitoring of usage of charging stations in place, dynamic charge, power limitations ...
- Do you think the dynamic charge management could be advantageous for your business?
 - For example, being able to control the power supplied to the poles depending on different factors: renewable energy production, energy prices, and special services for some users or chargers (fast vs low charging speed...).
- As CPO, do you have available today an infrastructure that allows the dynamic charge?
 - o YES
 - o NO
 - If YES, which is the kind of information you have available for characterizing the dynamic charge?
 - INPUTs (user preferences, energy mix, time ...) and OUTPUTS (energy amount to supply ...)



- If NO, which is the kind of information you consider as relevant for characterizing the dynamic charge?
- Is there any kind of information related to the charging process of EV that is of your interest, but your current management systems cannot provide?
 - (For example, the ecological footprint of previous charges, the CO2 emissions of charges in a given period of time ...)
- Do you receive any kind of data or requirements from the DSO (e.g. power limitations, grid status...)? What protocol or format is the one employed by DSO for sending these data?
- In a near future, when there is a higher deployment of the EV. Do you consider that communication between CPO and the DSO will be essential? Which is the kind of information they are going to interchange (e.g., power limitations, V2G requirements ...)?
- What is the level of detail for fixing the fees (€ per kWh)? Which of these parameters do you usually use to define the different tariffs? Please, give us your opinion about these parameters for fixing fees:
 - Time (considering day of the week, and the time range)
 - Supplied power
 - Parking (the time occupying the parking slot without being charging)
 - Energy mix (clean energy versus fossil energy)
- Do you provide electricity from any energy renewable sources? Is the energy mix available in your charging management system? In case you have information


about the energy mix you supply, how often do you receive it? If do not, do you consider that the integration of the energy mix information in your charging management system could be interesting in the near future?

- Which is the most common electric power supplied to a charging point in your facility/ies? Which is the most common charging time?
- In your opinion, which are the most important aspects for improving the charging points available today? Please, justify your answers.
 - o Location
 - o Vandalism
 - o Wear out
 - Standardization
 - o Interoperability
 - o Others:
- Please, explain the guidelines you follow in order to locate future charging stations:

ENERGY, LOGISTICS AND STORAGE / DSO (Distribution System Operator)

- Which communication protocol (and version) are you employing as DSO, for communicating grid overloads, supply cuts or other issues?
 - o TASE 2
 - Strengths:
 - Weaknesses:
 - o Others:



- Strengths:
- Weaknesses:
- In a near future, when there is a higher deployment of the EV. Do you consider that communication between DSO and the CPO will be essential? Which is the kind of information they are going to interchange (e.g., power limitations, V2G requirements ...)?
- In your opinion, which are the main measures to adopt, for facing the grid overloads that the EV deployment will bring?
 - To limit the charge of EVs when the grid is overload. The CPO manage the power supply under certain requirements of the DSO, that in return, will compensate somehow the CPO.
 - $\circ~$ CPO and DSO continuously interchange information for avoiding grid overloads.
- In your opinion, which are the most feasible measures that will be adopted for increasing the employment of renewable energy sources, and increase the grid storage capacity?
- In your opinion, which are the most feasible measures that will be adopted for increasing the grid stability and robustness?







USER-CHI Delphi II - CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES

INTRODUCTION AND OBJECTIVES Welcome to the second round questionnaire of Delphi method in USER-CHI project!!!

At this time, you have received the summary of the total results of the strategies, features and functionalities of the EV charging process.

Now, we need you to confirm, or modify this situation description and check some elements. Your participation will take you around 10 minutes.

MAIN OBJECTIVE:

· To validate the European EV Charging Infraestructure Map.

· To prioritize functionalities, features and improvement elements.

Ready to start?





1. Please, indicate the country where you carry out your professional activity
Austria
Belgium
Bulgaria
Crostia
Republic of Cyprus
Czech Republic
O Denmark
Estonia
Finland
() France ()
Germany
Greece
Hungary
Ireland
Italy
🔾 Labia
Lithuania
U Luxembourg
() Maita
 Netherlands
Poland
Pottugel
Romania
Sovekia
) Slovenia
) Spain_)
Sweden
Others (please specify)



2. Please, indicate your gender:

Female		
() Male()		
Other		
Other (please specify)		

3. Please, indicate your professional profile: (You can mark several options)

Urban Mobility Planners
Mobility Service Provider
Charging Point Operator
Distribution System Operator



USER-CHI Delphi II - CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES - VALIDATION

EUROPEAN EV CHARGING INFRAESTRUCTURE MAP VALIDATION

4. In your opinion, at what level, the summary of the European EV charging infrastructure map reflect the real situation:

Extremely realistic

L Carrie	 _	
 	 _	

O Somewhat realistic

Not so realistic

O Not at all realistic

5. Please, comment, modify or assess the aspects of the results that you consider do not reflect the current situation:

11111	COLUMN 1	





CTROMOBILITY PLANS PRIORITIES	
Within the process for planning the installati orities? (Check the most relevant three optic	on of new changing stations in your city, which are the curre ons)
Standardization of technical components	Users triendy APP and payments
Interoperability at European level	Availability of AC charging infrastructure on the (small) neighborhood level
Roaming	Ensy access.
Legal support	Functional availability insufficies chargers on one booking
Automatic user detection	Australia in a second sec
Mandatory OCPP	parking, Shop & charge and Streetight-parking
Registration and payment in an application	Increase locations
Regular payment methods	Decrease vandalism
Use of Distributed Ledger Technology (DLT)	Decrease the traffic congestion
	Promote the public transport
Other (please specify)	
Which are your goals regarding the provisio	n of charging points within the next 3 years?
Which are your goals regarding the provisio	n of charging points within the next 3 years?
Which are your goals regarding the provisio Less than 500 Between 501 to 1000 Between 1001 to 1500	n of charging points within the next 3 years?
Which are your goals regarding the provision Less than 500 Between 501 to 1000 Between 1001 to 1500	n of charging points within the next 3 years? Between 1501 to 2000 More than 2000
Which are your goals regarding the provision Less than 500 Between 501 to 1000 Between 1001 to 1500 SER-CHI Delphi II - CHARGING INFR /ALIDATION	n of charging points within the next 3years?
Which are your goals regarding the provision Less than 500 Between 501 to 1000 Between 1001 to 1500 SER-CHI Delphi II - CHARGING INFR (ALIDATION RGING INFRAESTRUCTURE ELEME	ASTRUCTURE OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES
Which are your goals regarding the provision Less than 500 Between 501 to 1000 Between 1001 to 1500 SER-CHI Delphi II - CHARGING INFR /ALIDATION RGING INFRAESTRUCTURE ELEME Which is the type of energy you provide?	ASTRUCTURE OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES
Which are your goals regarding the provision Less than 500 Between 501 to 1000 Between 1031 to 1500 SER-CHI Delphi II - CHARGING INFR /ALIDATION RGING INFRAESTRUCTURE ELEME Which is the type of energy you provide? Renewable energy	ASTRUCTURE OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES



9. Regarding the charging stations,	which are the most frequent elements?
Sockets Type2	Charging technology AC
Sockets ChaDeMo	Charging technology DC
Sockets CCS	
Other (please specify)	
10. Which communication protocol (and version) are you employing?
00PI22	Own develop proprietary
0CPI 20.	OpenADR
OCPPJ 1.6	O OSCP
OCPP-J15	O OICP
Other (please specify)	
IISER-CHI	
UULN UI	
Renewall to description of the	
USER-CHI Delphi II - CHARGIN	NG INFRASTRUCTURE OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES
- VALIDATION	
ERVICE FEATURES	
 Which are the main features of the s tost interestad in? 	system you are employing today and which are the features you are

	I have it	I want to use it
Charging point status (occupied/unoccupied/in maintenance, blocked, charging, reserved)		
Monitoring of usage of charging stations in place		
Dynamic charge		
Power limitation		



	I have if	I want to use it
Complex micro-mobility backend services for LEV-s (inc. monitoring, user interface, payment, integration with other senart city backend services)		
Booking		
Remote authorization of charging through mobile #00		
Consumption data of charge session		
Error monitoring		
Monitoring and controlling devices and billing with admin panel		
Congestion management as a cloud service		
Metering and using other consumption data to automatically adjust charging power used		
Contactiess payment		
Dynamic navigation to charge point		
Waling list		
Power availability		
Display		
Setting up tariff-system		
Information about the energy mix you supply		
Total charge at minimum time		
Total charge at lowest price		
Total charge at maximum percentage of renewable energy)		
In demand stress situations		
Flexible pricing		
V2G requirements		
Other (please specify)		



12. Which is the level of detail for fixing the fees that you have and which are the criteria you are interested in?

	Lbave 8	I want to use it
Time (considering day of the week, and the time range)		
Supplied power		
Parking (the time occupying the parking alot without being charging)		
Energy mix (clean energy versus fossil energy)		
User preferences		
Expected duration of charge		
Charge planning (time of leaving the pole with what kind of battery level) of the user		
Price sensitivity of user		
Other (please specify)		
1009/1000/004/0004/0004/		



USER-CHI Delphi II - CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES - VALIDATION

The questionnaire has finished. Thank you very much for your collaboration!!! Check DONE



Annex 2: Field Diary



USER-CHI Diary - My experience with an electric vehicle

Thank you very much for participating in the improvement and promotion of the electric vehicle charging network in Europe that the User-Chi project is carrying out, and in particular, thank you for helping us to improve mobility in our city.

Ready to start?



USER-CHI Diary - My experience with an electric vehicle

MY USER PROFILE AS EV DRIVER

We want to know about you!!! Detail your characteristics as an electric vehicle user.

1. Please, indicate the city / municipality where you live:

2. Indicate your age:

				_			
- 60	bra 1	100		с.	-	-	i.
 - 14	MD - 1	ю.	40	DR 1	-		
 _		-	_				

Between 26 and 65 years

From 56 years and older

Specifically, how old are you?

3. Indicate your gender:

) Female

Male

Others (specify)



Indicates if you have children and their age range:

I have no children

- I have 1 or more children from 0 to 5 years old
- I have 1 or more children from 6 to 11 years old
- I have 1 or more children from 12 to 16 years old
- I have 1 or more children from 17 to 21 years old
- I have 1 or more children 22 years of age and older

5. Indicate the participant' educational background:

- Primary studies
- High school degree
- College degree
- Master's degree
- O Postgraduate degree
- 🕖 Doctoral degree PhD

6. How long have you been using an electric vehicle?

- Uses than 1 year
- 1-2- years
- 35 years
- More than 5 years

7. What uses of the electric vehicle do you identify with? (indicate all the uses you make)

Urban / Interurban area: Tm a professional.

Urban / Interurban area: Tm user with my own or shared vehicle.

Light vehicle (bike, motorcycle, scooter): I'm user with my own or shared vehicle.

Long distance: I'm user with my own or shared vehicle.

Other (specify)



8. Indicate the type and frequency of electric vehicle used:

	Car model		Type of LEV (Light election vehicles)	stric	Frequency of use	
It is my property		٥		0		٥
It's from my company		\$	[٥		٥
It is for rent or shared		٥	[0		٥
Others (specify other mor	dels and uses)					

9. Please, rate your satisfaction with the use of electric vehicles:

10. Tell us in detail the best and worst of electric vehicles and your personal experience ... Will you buy an electric vehicle again?



USER-CHI Diary - My experience with an electric vehicle

MI EXPERIENCIA DE CARGA

11. Please, describe how you charge the vehicle: how you plan and book the charging point, how you get there, where you usually charge (at home, supermarkets, parking lots, on the road ...), what you do during charging time, how you make the payment ...

12. Detail what problems you endure during the charging process: (someone has occupied the space you had reserved, excessive charging time, there is no charge for light vehicles such as scooter,)

13. Please, rate your app:









Annex 3: Survey



USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

Welcome to the survey of the European research project USER-CHI. The aim of the project is to provide e-drivers with an optimal charging infrastructure and thus to promote the use of electric vehicles. By participating in the survey, you are not only supporting this Project, but also contribute to improving e-mobility in your city.

This survey aims to find out the opinion that citizens have about electric vehicles and their charging systems, in order to determine the charging processes currently carried out by e-drivers, but also to collect the insights that internal combustion engine's drivers have related to electric vehicles. We ask you in the following questionnaire to share your charging experience and your opinions.

MAIN OBJECTIVES:

- To validate the European Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Infrastructure situation.
- To prioritize functionalities, features and improvement elements in terms of planning, availability, accessibility and payment for the charging process.

You can learn more about the project on https://twitter.com/userchi h2020

Thank you very much for participating in the improvement and promotion of the electric vehicle charging network in Europe that the USER-CHI project is carrying out.

Ready to start?

USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

USER PROFILE

We want to know about you!!!

1. Please, indicate the city / municipality where you live:

2. Indicate your age: Less than 25 25-35 36-45 46-55 55-65 Over 65



3. Indicate your gender:

Female

Male

Others

4. When you drive your car, who are you usually travelling with? (a maximum of 3)

Alone

Shared with colleagues for getting to the office

Children

Mate

Family

Other

5. Indicate your educational background:

School finished without graduating

High school degree

College degree

Master's degree

Postgraduate degree

Doctoral degree - PhD

6. Indicate the type and frequency of vehicle used:

Internal combustion engine vehicle (gas, diesel, gasoline) Hybrid vehicle Electric vehicle Internal combustion engine motorcycle Others (specify other types and frequency of use)

Frequency of use:

Less than 12 times a year Every month 2 or less days a week 3-4 days a week 5-7 days a week Property: It is my property It is from my company It is for rent or shared



7. Indicate your car brand: (Abarth Alfa Romeo Alpina Aston Martin Audi Bentley BMW Cadillac Caterham Chevrolet Chrysler Citroen Dacia Daihatsu Ferrari Fiat Ford Honda Hyundai Infiniti Isuzu lveco Jaguar Jeep Kia KTM Lada Lamborghini Lancia Land Rover Lexus Lotus Maserati Mazda Mercedes-Benz MG Mini Mitsubishi Morgan





Nissan Opel Peugeot Piaggio Porsche Renault Rolls-Royce Rover Seat Skoda Smart SsangYong Subaru Suzuki Tata Tesla Toyota Volkswagen Volvo Other (please specify)

- 8. Indicate the model of vehicles used:
- 9. Please, rate your satisfaction with the use of your vehicles:

USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

OPINION ON ELECTRIC VEHICLES CURRENTLY What do you think of electric vehicles?



* 10. Please, detail the best aspects of the electric vehicles: (a maximum of 3)

Sustainable Economical to use Easy to use Driving comfort Speed Softness Silent Conscience Lighter to ride Charging the car at home Fast acceleration Sensitivity No emissions to the local environment Nice Reliable Other (please specify)

* 11. Please, detail the worst aspects of the electric vehicles: (a maximum of 3)

It's an expensive car Low autonomy Low duration of betteries Autonomy depends on external factors, like temperature, orography... The batteries maintenance is expensive Hard to get the needed maintenance service It is necessary to have a plan to charge the car for occasional longer journeys Few charging points Long charging time The road infrastructure is in poor condition The road infrastructure presents deficiencies in maintenance Electric vehicle charging parking lots are occupied by fuel vehicles or electric vehicles that are not charging Charge prices are high Incompatibility exists between networks and chargers

Poor quality of the charging points: slowness, impossibility of carrying out two charges at the same time and interruptions

Insufficient and unevenly distributed infrastructure

I have no chance to charge the electric vehicle at home or at the workplace; having the possibility of installing a charger in my parking lot

5



Other (please specify)

12. Would you buy an electric vehicle as your next car?

- Definitely would Probably would
- Probably would not
- Definitely would not

USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

ELECTRIC VEHICLE

13. Next, we are going to ask you some questions related to the use of the electric vehicle. Do you have / drive an electric vehicle?

Yes

No

USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

ELECTRIC VEHICLE EXPERIENCE

14. How long have you been using an electric vehicle?

Less than 1 year 1-2-years 3.5 years

More than 5 years.

15. For what purpose do you mainly use your electric vehicle? (indicate all the uses you make)

Urban / Interurban area: I'm a professional (passenger transport).

Urban / Interurban area: This a professional (parcets, deliveries, fresh food and goods).

Urban / interurban area: Fm user with my own vehicle. Urban / Interurban area: I'm user with shared vehicle.

Light vehicle (bike, motorcycle, scooter): I'm user with my own vehicle.

Light vehicle (bike, motorcycle, scooter): I'm user with shared vehicle.

Long distance: Tm user with my own or shared vehicle.

Other (specify)



USER







USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

SERVICE FEATURES

18. Which are the main features of the system you are employing today and which are the features you are most interested in?

- Charging point status occupied/unoccupied/in maintenance, blocked, charging, reserved)
- Monitoring of usage of charging stations in place
- Power limitation for obtain a lower price

Complex micro-mobility backend services for Light Electric Vehicles (inc. monitoring, user interface, payment, integration with other smart city backend services)

Pre-booking

Remote authorization of charging through mobile app

Consumption data of charge session

- Contactless payment
- Dynamic navigation to charging point

Waiting list for the charging point

Power availability

Display in the charging point

Information about the energy mix you supply

Total charge at minimum time

Total charge at maximum percentage of renewable energy)

Total charge at lowest price

Flexible pricing according to charging conditions

Other (please specify)

19. Which are the criteria of detail for fixing the fees that you are interested in?

Time (considering day of the week, and the time range)

Supplied power

Parking (the time occupying the parking slot without being charging)

Energy mix (clean energy versus tossil energy)

Expected duration of charge

Charge planning (time of leaving the pole with what kind of battery level) of the vehicle

Other (please specify)

USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

CHARGING EXPERIENCE

20. Where do you usually charge?

- At home Supermarkets Public Parking lots Private parking lots At highways At work
- Shopping center

Other (please specify)



21. How long do you usually take to charge when you don't charge at home?

Less than 15 minutes

- Between 15 and 25 minutes Between 26 and 30 minutes
- Between 31 and 60 minutes
- Between 1 and 2 hours
- Between 2 and 3 hours
- More than 3 hours

22. How much charging power do you usually use when you don't charge at home?

Less than 5 kW Between 6 and 25 kW Between 26 and 50 kW More than 50 kW Donot know

23. Where do you think charging points lack, and therefore should there be more?

- At home
- Supermarkets

Public Parking lots

- Private parking lots
- At highways
- At work
- Shopping center
- Other (please specify)

24. What do you usually do while charging?

Stay at home

Purchases

Work

Leisure

Other (please specify)



 Please, indicate any problems/challenges that you regularly experience when charging your electric vehicle at charging points. (Indicate the 3 main problems)

Charging time is limited (30 minutes is not time enough for 100% charge)

One plug per charging point. Simultaneous charge of EVs unavailable

Lack of charging points

Waiting times: booking and queues

Lack of information about availability

Malfunction, lack of maintenance

Bad design (bad coupling with the plug, charging point wrongly oriented)

Cars parked in charging points. Booking times are not respected

Bad connection. Charging failures

Low charging speed

incompatibilities between plugs and cars

Other (please specify)

26. Which is the charging app you use?

AMB
Chargeway
Duferoo
Easycharger
Electromaps
Enel X.
EV charge
RH .
ionity
Juice pass
Kiataus
Nextcharge
Plugshare





Plugsurfing Simou Tesla Virta I do not use any apps Other

- 27. Please, rate your app:
- 28. Please, rate the adequacy of the charging points used:
- 29. Please, rate the suitability of the plugs:

30. Please, rate the waiting time-

- 31. Please, rate the quality of information you receive about your charge:
- 32. Please, indicate the best ideas to improve the charging process: (select 3)
 - Customisation of the charging speed / charging time
 - Several plugs per charging point or simultaneous charge of EVs
 - increase the amount of fast charging points
 - Real time information about availability, type of plug, and booking list for next 30 minutes and on
 - Monitoring the charging progress on a mobile app
 - Efficient procedure for communicating failures&malfunctions of charging points
 - Increase the amount of charging points in public parking lots
 - Priority for electric vehicles
 - Universal plugs or availability of all plug models
 - incentives: highways for free, exclusive parking lots for EVs, free charging points in highway
 - Charging points at the workplaces
 - Charging point activates when connecting the plug or through a mobile application increase the amount of charging points on the road, outside urban areas
 - improve maintenance and improve facilities (e.g. a roof for the rain)
 - Mobile phone's alert when charging process is completed
 - Mobile phone's alert when charging time is exceeded in 30 minutes



Penalizations for drivers that use charging points as parking lots

Other (please specify)

USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

LIGHT ELECTRIC VEHICLE

Next, we will ask you some questions related to the use of light electric vehicles. Do you ride a light electric vehicle? (eScooter, eBike, eMotorbike)

Yes

No

USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

LIGHT ELECTRIC VEHICLE

 What kind of light electric vehicle do you use? eBike (own vehicle)

eScooter (own vehicle)

eMotorbike (own vehicle)

eBike (shared vehicle)

eScoxter (shared vehicle .

eMotorbike (shared vehicle)

34. How long have you been using an light electric vehicle?

Less than 1 year 1-2- years 3-5 years More than 5 years

35. Please, detail the best aspects of the light electric vehicles: (select 3)

Great for city mobility: short distances
It is a cheap mobility solution (no parking lot, insurance, taxes,)
Alternative at cities for cars, bikes, public transport or move by waiking.
Time sevings
Easy charging at home and at office; you don't need a charging infrastructure at the street / Some models have detachable betteries
Easy to store in a very small place
Light
Funny: freedom experience
Low maintenance



Silent

Great riding experiences No pollution; wellbeing Great for injured people (e.g. knee) High autonomy Other (please specify)

36. Please, detail the problems of the light electric vehicles: (select 3)

Coexistence problems and circulation problems with more conventional vehicles or pedestrians. It is not good for long distances or uneven areas Lack of legislation Dangerous for who drives it Dangerous for pedestrians Insecure for riding on the road, among cars Real autonomy is lower than autonomy declared by manufacturer, and depends on several factors Battery maintenance is expensive Purchasing cost Lack of shock absorbers and small wheels make you feel any road defect (uncomfortable) It is very easy to have a tyre puncture, if the pressure is low Poor service: poor technical support Expensive insurance Poor autonomy; only urban use High price Low speed Batteries degradation and battery problems Heavier vehicles due to battery. Other (please specify) 37. Please, detail the solutions to improve the use of light electric vehicles: (select 3)

Free urban parking lots for e-bikes and electric motorcycles with changing points Specific areas, with parking lots to charge electric motorcycles More electric bike and scooter lanes, and safer lanes Fast charging points well distributed throughout urban and road areas Possibility of managing the search for charging points, availability, occupancy and conservation status in a reliable way Standarized charging points for all electric vehicles including a simple and reliable payment process Other (please specify)



USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

INTERNAL COMBUSTION ENGINE VEHICLE

38. Next, we will ask you some questions related to the use of an internal combustion engine car or a hybrid engine car. Do you drive a combustion car (gasoline or diesel) or a hybrid engine car?

Internal Combustion Engine car (gas, classel, gasoline)

Hybrid car

No combustion/hybrid car

USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

INTERNAL COMBUSTION ENGINE VEHICLE

39. For what purpose do you mainly use your vehicle? (indicate all the uses you make)

Urban / Interurban area: Fm a professional (passenger transport).

Urban / Interurban area: Fm a professional (parcels, deliveries, fresh food and goods).

- Urban / Interurban area: Fm a user with my own vehicle.
- Urban / Interurban area: I'm a user with shared vehicle.
- Light vehicle (bike, motorcycle, scooter): I'm a user with my own vehicle.
- Light vehicle (bike, motorcycle, scooler): I'm a user with shared vehicle.
- Long diatance: fm user with my own vehicle.
- Long distance: I'm user with shared vehicle.
- Other (specify)



 What should be different related to electric vehicle or infrastructures for you to buy or lease an electric vehicle (100% electric)? (select 3)

- Reduce the price of electric vehicles
- More companies offering electric vehicle rental services
- More information about its features (advantages and disadvantages)
- Incertives for purchase such as financial aid, tax incentives.
- Other incentives: free parking / highways for free
- Increased autonomy of the car, batteries with more autonomy
- More fast chargers and befor spread
- Charging at home
- Charging at the workplace
- More car models / aesthetics improved charging network
- Standard components, shared by different manufacturers improved technical support, and faster.
- Other (please specify)

41. Additional comments related to electric vehicles or infrastructures:

USER-CHI Survey - Study of the electric vehicle and charging infrastructure in Europe

The questionnaire has finished. Thank you very much for your collaboration!!! Check DONE



Annex 4: Netnography results' report





Netnography: an online research method originating in <u>ethnography</u> is understanding <u>social</u> <u>interaction</u> in contemporary <u>distal communications</u> contexts. Netnography is a specific set of research practices related to data collection, analysis, research ethics, and representation, rocked in participant observation. In netnography, a significant enound of the data originates in and manifests through the digital traces of naturally occurring public conversations recorded by contemporary communications networks. Netnography uses these conversations as data. It is an interpretive research method that adapts the traditional in-person <u>participant</u> observation techniques of <u>anthropology</u> to the study of interactions and experiences manifesting through <u>distal</u> <u>communications</u> (*).

> Affrance V. Scoresto (2006), "In Intergraphy, while Holeston in Computer Property Computer Life Computer V. A. R. Anternet & Computer Version Version V. See, Second M. Mark J. Computer Version, Name, V. Y. Anternet Version, Computer Version, Name, 2017



SAMPLE				WEIGHT OF THE EV CHARGE ELEMENTS				
	Germany	Nonwity	Spain	Contractor of the	Germany	Norway	Spain	
Durt Durt	123	175	212	Restric vehicle	28%	33%	50%	
X Mentioned aspects	1.53	292	4.72	Er Wrastructure	70%	21%	32%	
Average of exentions	1.5 1.1	1,1	2.2	/ incentives / mormation	2%	46%	8%	
ça foruna		1	1	theironnen	0%	0%	DN 5N	
	NUMER	ROFEVONA	RGE INFI	ANTRUCTURE PER POPULAT	ON			
	Second		Ger	many Norway	Spain			
	Testa supercharger		1/1,	000,000 1/20,000 1/	900,000			
	S Tesla dest charger		1/1	00,000 1/37,000 1/	100,000			
	Ef Charging point		1/1	10,000 1/2,000 1	/ 9,000			
		£ .			10.000			









accord





Paul/Genn network Poor maintenance and inadequate installation The charging system is not standarised, becompatibilities for accessing and paying Fast charging notecock, in insufficients and expensive а.

- There are no public charging points in the national roads notwork. The charging time is high Lack of circl spirit of those people who park KE writcles in EV parking lots.

- Micropathilities between cars and charging points
 Service stations should include services for EV drivers
 The driver can adapt the charging times and the charging power to its necessities
 To force the occupation level and to book the charging is
- Users introduced present about how charging points work
 Charging points all stribution in sery unbalanced in the whole country; the charging points concentrate at the Northern and in the big close Charging points network (home):
- 1. An economic investment is required for charging the car: wires, Wallton for home, and the professional installation
- DPRoutles for charger installators in communal parkings
 Vourspains a parking lot for charging
 Cost of the alexinity

Division

- Technical assistance is peer, and technicians are peerly trained, compared to espertise and services offered by KE technicians
 Renting batteries is expensive
 - 👍 m







E-Manual and a state

and advectage and advectage and advectage and advectage adve

Levi senserbility among staging scheimte; Affannet charging tethnics are country, which are not accounting, marring officiely/counting account

Married Landress Married Landress Tax was get Arts, and have to be stand in the sections • Tax sector providing the hadamant

Â

De

na 🔃 name/strates 💥 more

I I ÷

Designing address Little recent for inagongs

2

Content IR Overtared separtic IR Overtared separtics IS

21.9 Br

B+ ---

The state

i.

- 10

4 -

Treatmant Thicks sharping tables it The Drage of home, and have access to have phages, so seed to carry or see when

Car Televisio Header 6 am Bellevis plates, and ana celoted file Among 20(4) (Nor asset)









et ^{anoma}t


















PRAISTRUCTURE ACTINOGRAPHY Provide Activity Activity Provide Activity Statistics Statist	End on a performant paying tectors, names, here and solar (theo) that age, Theorem (the second sec	 Charactery points susception (e.g., VID, An-character VIDE) (VID. Experiments of the system of the set of
Sample dae (Sieman) Dart 17 Mediared agents 29 Mediared agents 15		-
		A Positive examine A Repairie examine
DNCLUSIONS (I) (GERMANY)		
Improving aspects		
Charging points network (Road) :	V	and it is according to
 To know in advance if the charge Provi maintenance literative charge 	er point is occupied (e.g. UCL, Raufund D RUA), a system and of order broken solar author sluts)	end it is operative
Cand as a preferred sealing torite	my easier, fighter and more direct than easy. Appl	failures la a GetCharge Incogsi
Long range trips require route in	lating and charging points location	mentalist contracts
5. To improve public parking mana	gement; free charging linked to a minimum purc	hese could be plenty of screanges. Lack of security: you can
outoff the charge of another une	r (and yours can be cutoff by another one)	
6. Public free chargers are in bad o	undition and occupied	Democratic Action and the second
7. More slow chatgers and less fea	t chargers at supermarkets; buying at the supern	nariset takes mores tan half an hour
 More slow chargers and less fas 8. Managing two charges at the sa 	t chargers at supermarkets; buying at the supern me time (e.g. if a TESLA is charging you cannot d	narket takes mores tan half an hour large on the other plug)
 More slow chargers and less far E. Managing two charges at the sa B. Deficient charging points netwo 	Echargers et supermarkets; buying at the super- me time (e.g. if a TESLA is charging you cannot cl rk; this fact restrains. Fits parchasing, More fact c	nariest takes mores tan half an hour large on the other plug) Sungers are required
 More slow chargers and less fea 8. Managing two charges at the sa 8. Deficient charging points setuio 10. Charging time limitation is a pro 	I chargers at supermarkets; buying at the supern me time (e.g. if a TISEA is charging you cannot d rig this fact restrains. Fits purchasing, More fast o blem	sarisat balans morens tan haiff an heuer wagas on the other plugg buergens are required
 More New Chargers and less fast 8. Managing two charges at the sa 9. Deficient charging points retain 35. Charging time limitation is a pro 11. Charging cutoffs 	I chargers at supermarkets; buying at the superm me time (e.g. if a TESLA is charging you cannot cl ric, this fact restrains. EVs parchasing. More fact o blem	sarkat takas mores tan haif an hour waga on the other plug hungers are required
 More slow chargers and less fee 8. Managing two charges at the La 8. Deficient charging points netwo 10. Charging time limitation is a pro 11. Charging cutoffs 12. Lack of standarisation for charge 24. More manufactures for charge 	i chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettione law, if a TISA is charging you cannot ci ric this fact restrains. EVs parchasing, More fast c blem ing points, janying systems, authentication system	sarbat bakes mores tan haif an hour wage on the other plugj hungens are required
 More stow chargers and teo fee 8. Managing two charges at the sa 8. Deficient charging points wetwo 19. Charging close limitation is a pro 11. Charging cutoffs 12. Lack of standarisation for chargin 13. High prices for charging 14. These sources and standards. 	It chargers at supermarkets, huving at the superm me time (e.g. if a TESLA is charging you cannot d it, don fast redrams. IVs purchasing. More fast c oliem ing points, paying systems, authentication system is to other sector.	sariset balans morens tan haiff an houer waga on the other plugg dwagans are required m,
 More stow chargers and teo fee 8. Managing two charges at the sa 8. Deficient charging points seture 30. Charging time limitation is a pro- 11. Charging cutoffs 12. Lack of standarisation for charging 13. High proces for charging 14. There is no a good solution when 14. There is no a good solution when 14. Sector solutions and points in the sectors in 15. Bartes exclusions and solutions. 	I chargers at supermarkets, buying at the supern me time (e.g. if a TESLA is charging you cannot d ric disinfact redrams (Vis purchasing, More fact o bleen ing points, paying systems, audientication system in it is color in the color mains as for their	nariset bakes mores tan haif an heue wege on the other plug) twegens are required
 More size chargers and teo fee B. Managing two charges at the us Beficient charging points retwo Charging time limitation is a point. Charging cutoffs Lack of standarisation for charging High prices for charging. High prices for charging. Heat magnetize a solution wheels. Heater signalization of particular to Evaluate a solution in a point solution wheels. 	I chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettione law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVs purchasing, More fast o blem ing points, junying systems, authentication system in it is cold or name as for EUs.	sariset balans moores tan half an hour waga on the other plug] Jwagem are required He =-
 More size charges and less fee 8. Managing two charges at the sa 8. Deficient charging points return 19. Charging time limitation is a pro 10. Charging charfs Lack of standarisation for chargin 19. High prices for charging 14. There is no a good solution whe 15. Better upsalastics at particip li Charging points network (itoest) : 1. Charging a thorne or a the offici 	I chargers at supermarkets, huying at the super- metition lag, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. IVs parchasing. More fact o elem ing points, paying systems, authentication system in it is cold or name as for Elis in a key factor.	sariset balans morres tan haiff an hour waga on the other plug] bungens are required
 More stow chargers and teo fee 8. Managing two charges at the sa 8. Deficient charging points network 19. Charging cutoffs 10. Charging cutoffs 10. Charging cutoffs 10. Lack of standarisation for charging 10. High prices for charging 11. There is no a good solution whe 13. Better synalization at paring in Charging points network (Norma): 1. Problems when charging in a co 1. Problems when the paring in a co 1. Problems of the same size of the office 1. Problems of the same size of the same size of the office 1. Problems when charging in a co 1. Problems of the same size of the same size of the same 1. Problems of the same size of th	I chargers at supermarkets, huying at the super- me time leg, if a TESLA is charging you cannot of the time leg, if a TESLA is charging you cannot of the time of the time of the time of the time of the others ing points, paying systems, authentication system in it is cold or name to for Elm. In a key factor memoral charging point	sarisat balans morens tan haif an heuer waga on the other plugg bungers are required
 there show chargers and less fee. Managing two charges at the isa. Deficient charging points retwo Charging time limitation is a peot Charging cutoffs Last of standarisation for charging High prices for charging High prices for charging Heter spasiators of parking is Charging at home or at the offic Charging at home or at the offic 	I chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettow law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVis purchasing. More fact or other ing points, paying systems, authentication system in it is cold or name as for Elm. at is a key factor menural charging point.	sariset tales: mores tan haif an hour wege on the other plug] bargens are required
 More slow chappers and less fee. Managing two chappes at the sa. Deficient charging points networed. Charging time limitation is a protection. Charging cutoffs. Lack of standarisation for charging. High prices for charging. High prices for charging. Herter signalization of parking in Charging politics network (itoese): Charging a chores or a the offloor. Charging at home or at the offloor. Problems when charging in a control of the signalization. 	I chargers at supermarkets, huying at the super- in strue lag, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVe parchasing, More fact o blem ing points, paying systems, authentication system in it is cold or name as for Elen in it a key factor minuted charging point	nariat balan mores tan haif an heur waga on tie other plugj fuegen: are required n _e =-
 More slow chappers and less fee Managing two chappes at the sa B. Managing time limitation is a period 20. Charging time limitation is a period 12. Lock of standarisation for charging 13. High prices for charging 14. There is no a good solution when 15. Better signalization of parking in Charging politis network (Hoses) I 1. Charging at home or at the offlor 2. Problems when charging in a co- part of the solution of the offlor 2. Problems when charging in a co- stant of the solution of the offlor 3. Solution of the solution of the offlor 3. Charging in the solution of the solution 3. Charging in the solution of the solution 3. Charging a borne or a solution of the solution 3. Charging the solution of the solution 3. Charging in a solution of the solution of the solution 3. Solution of the solution of the solution of the solution 3. Charging the solution of the solution of the solution 3. Charging the solution of the solution of the solution 3. Solution of the solution of the solution of the solution 3. Solution of the solution of the solution of the solution 3. Solution of the solution of the solution of the solution 3. Solution of the solut	I chargers at supermarkets, huying at the super- in strue lag, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. I've parchasing. More fact o blem ing points, paying systems, authentication system in it is cold or name as for Elis in a key factor minuted charging point	nartiart tains mores tan haif an heur waga on the other plug hangens are required n _e Postfore wants to brighten earth
7. Infore slow chappers and less fee 8. Managing two chappers at the sa 8. Deficient charging points instead 13. Charging time limitation is a peop 14. Charging could's 14. Last of standarisation for charging 14. There is no a good solution whe 15. Netter sumalization of participal 16. There is no a good solution whe 15. Return same for charging 16. Charging points metwork (Moses) : 1. Charging at home or at the offloor 2. Problems when charging in a co CONCLUSIONS (JR) (GERMANY)	I chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettowe law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of n't this fact restrains. IVis parchasing. More fact or blem ing points, paying systems, authentication system is it is cold or name as for this as it a key factor menual charging point.	nartiart talens morres tan haif an heur wage on the other plug hangens are required n _n PostTer examine the heighten insertion
 Morre slow chargers and less fee Managing two charges at the sa B. Deficient charging paints retwo 20. Charging time limitation is a prot 10. Charging caloffi 12. Lack of standarisation for charging 14. There is no a good solution whe 15. Better spasiation of parking is 16. Charging paints network (Moseet) 1 10. Charging at home or at the offici 2. Photolesmu when charging in a co conccuseOnis (JE) (SERMANY) 	I chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettowe law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVis purchasing. More fact or other ing points, paying systems, authentication system in it is cold or name as for EIn. is is a key factor menuant charging point	ertet teles mores ten half en hour wege on the other plug hangen are required e Photos exacts the begative sumther the begative sum half an hour the begative s
 Morre slow chappers and less file. Managing two chappers at the sa B. Managing two chappers at the sa B. Deficient charging points retwo Charging time limitation is a profile charging clutch? Lack of standarization for charging 1. High prices for charging 1. High prices for charging 1. How is non a good solution whe is. Better spanitation of parking to Charging at home or at the office 2. Problems when charging is a control of the charging standard state of the charging state of the office 2. Problems when charging is a control of the charging state of the charging state of the charging state of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of the charging is a control of the charging state of th	I chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettow law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ni; this fact restrains. IVII purchasing. More fact or oliven in it is cold or name as for this as it a key factor menuant charging point	ertet teles mores ten half en hour wegen on tie other plug Nemen are required Ne
 Morre slow chappers and less file. Managing two chappes at the sa. Deficient charging points tetwo Charging time limitation is a pro Charging controls. Charging controls. Charging controls. High prices for charging High prices for charging High prices for charging. High prices for charging the limitation when Stetter upnalation and participle. Charging points network (Novel): Convocuusions (In) (GERMAANY) Paulities aspects: Charging points network (Novel): 	I chargers at supermarkets, huying at the super- mettione law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVis purchasing. More fact or blem in this cold or name as too film. as it a kny factor emunal charging paint.	artist tales mores tan half an hour wagen on the other plug Awagen are required R _s =- # Profiler examine & legatine examine 15% - 54%
 Morre slow chargers and less fee Managing two charges at the sa bill beforent charging points instead to Deficient charging points instead 12. Charging time limitation is a prot 13. Charging colorfs Charging colorfs There is no a good solution whe bits lister spanalastion of parking is charging points network (house) : Charging at home or at the officient problems when charging in a color concellusions (II) (GERMAANY) Problem agents: Charging points network (house) : The charging network is sufficient 	t chargers at supermarkets, buyong et the super- mentione lag, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVis purchasing. More fact o blem in it is cold or naims as for EVis. at is a key factor minuted charging point	eritet teles mores ten half en hour wagen on tie other plug hangen are required * Profiler avants * brgeten avants 11% 34%
To note show charges and less fee Managing two charges at the is Deficient charging points intered Deficient charging points intered Charging could* To an an apool solution whe To and of standarisation of parking is There is no a good solution whe To any the standarisation of parking is There is no a good solution whe To any the standarisation of a service is There is no a good solution whe To any the standarisation of the service Concellasions when charging is a co There agencia: There is a set of the sharging point is a set of the set of the sharging point is a set of the sharging point is a set of the set o	I chargers at supermarkets, buyong et the superm met trom law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVis purchasing. More fact o blem in E is cold or name is for EIn: is a key factor menural charging point	nartiart takes mores tan haif an hour bargar on the other plug humgen are required * herefore avants * he
To nore slow charges and less fee Managing two charges at the is Deficient charging points retwo Charging time limitation is a pro Locar of standardization for chargin Locar of standardization for chargin High prices for charging Degree of the charging is a co Concclusions when charging is a co Concclusions (b) (GERMANY) Positive agents: Charging points retwork (Receil) The charging points retwork (Receil) There are first charging points in The mark the charging point in The mark the mark the charging point in The mark the	It chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettione law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVII purchasing. More fact o blem in it is cold or name as for EIN. a it a kny factor memoral charging point	artist takes mores tan half an hour wagen on the other plug hungen are required the
To more slow charges: and less fee Managing two charges at the sa Source of the second second second Deficient charging points retwo Charging time limitation is a per- Lock of standarisation for charging Lock of standarisation of solution when Source of the second second second second Charging points network (Noome) : Charging at home or at the office Problems when charging is a co CONCLUSIONS (III) (SERMANY) Problems when charging is a co Conclusions (III) (SERMANY) Problems when charging is a co Conclusions (III) (SERMANY) Problems agents: Charging points estwork (Nood) : The charging points estwork (Seaf) : The charging points estwork (Seaf) : The charging points of the structure of the second sec	to chargers at supermarkets, buyong et the superm met trom law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVIs parchasing. More fact o blem in it is cold or name as for EVIs is it a Xany factor minuted charging panel TIME ett is some geographical areas, with different de raining an app, supe like DidNV inform about charg (eq. bonty).	artist tales mores tan half an hour wage on the other plug hangen are required * Profiles exactly * Profiles exactly * Profiles exactly * Register agenty 54%
To more slow charges: and less fee Managing two charges at the is a Solution of the solution is a peo- Complex charging points retwo Charging outoffs Table is no a good solution whe Solution and an appoint of the solution Charging points network (Noses) : Conclusions (II) (SERMANY) Peollow agentic Conclusions (II) (SERMANY) Peollow agentic Charging points entwork (Nose) : The of the solution of the official Conclusions (II) (SERMANY) Peollow agentic Conclusions (III) (SERMANY) Peollow agentic Conclusions (III) (SERMANY) Conclusions (III) (SE	I chargers at supermarkets, buyong et the superm in strue lag, if a TISA is charging you cannot of its this fact restrains. EVis parchasing. More fact of the fact restrains. EVis parchasing. More fact of the cold or name is for EIn: is a saw factor menual charging point ett in some geographical areas, with different do sing an app; supplied areas, with different do sing parts. Rends, Rends, Rollerj, charging while for metersols areas	nartial takes mores tan haif an hour barge on the other plug hungers are required th
To more slow charges and less fee Managing two charges at the is a Solution of the second second second Charging time limitation is a peo- Locar of standarisation for charging the second second second second second the second second second second second Charging points network (Mosed) : Charging points network (Mosed) : Charging points network (Mosed) : Charging points network (Mosed) : The charging second	I chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettione lag. In TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVII purchasing. More fact of the data of the super- net in cold or name as for EIn. a is a key factor memorial charging point	artist takes mores tan half an hour wagen on the other plug hargen are required th =
To more slow chargers and less fee Managing two charges at the sa Is. Managing two charges at the sa Deficient charging points retwo Charging time limitation is a per- table of standarization for charging the same standarization of particular the same standarization of particular CONCLUSEONS (10) (GERMANY) Partitive segments: Charging points network (Rosel) : 1. The charging points is 2. There is the standaring points 3. This charging to the at superstands 5. This chargers and superchargers is 3. The chargers and superchargers is 3. The chargers and superchargers is 4. Supersame of the at superstands 5. The same same standarises of the same standarises 4. Supersame of the same standarises 4. Supersame standarises of the same standarises 4. Supersame standarises of the same standarises 5. This chargers and superchargers is 5. The same standarises of the same standarises 5. The same standarises of the same standarises of the same standarises 5. The same standarises of the s	I chargers at supermarkets, buyong et the super- mentione (e.g. 4 in TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVI purchasing. More fact of the method of the super- nist is cold or name as its a key factor menual charging panel ett is some geographical areas, with different di sing an app, sopp like DBMN inform about charg (e.g. long) ett (b. some geographical areas, with different di sing an app, super like DBMN inform about charg (e.g. long) ett (b. some geographical areas, with different di interpolitica areas restroption erass statocits are for free reseiption system the well of the super super statocit level of the charger (en with repolitical areas) level of the charger reseiption system the super statocit of the super restroption system the super super statocit level of the charger well both the super super super statocit level of the charger super super super super statocit level of the charger super super super super super statocit level of the charger super super	artist tales mores tan half an hour wagen on the other plug hangen are required * heriter exactly * herit
To more slow charges: and less fee Managing two charges at the isa B. Darficient charging paints retwo Darficent charging paints retwo Darficent charging paints retwo Charging points for charging There is no a good solution whe S. Netter sganulation of parking is Darging points metwork (Noses) : Counceussions (III) (GERMANY) Peelter agents: Counceussions (III) (GERMANY) Peelter agents: Charging points retwork (Read) : There is no for the good points of Counceussions (III) (GERMANY) Peelter agents: Charging points retwork (Read) : The charging networks in suffici- Counceussions (III) (GERMANY) The charging retworks in suffici- Counceussions (III) (GERMANY) The charging points retwork (Read) : The charging solution is suffici- Counceussions (III) (GERMANY) The same for the good points in S. Scharges, and superimants S. Scharges, and superimants S. Scharges, and superimants and points and S. Charges and superiments and points and S. Charges and superiments and superiments and superiments S. The increase of the amount of C. Charges and superiments and super	I chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettow law, if a TISA is charging you cannot ch ric this fact restrains. EVis purchasing. More fact c blem in 2 bit cold or name is to cold or name is to cold or name is to cold or name are an any factor memorial charging point in sume geographical areas, with different do sing an ego, sopa like DBHV inform about charg (a.g. tont) er (DBA, Remita, Inea, Roller), charging writin for methods areas is place, there is the subjection are for free investigation system	rartiat takes mores tan half an hour wagen on the other plug hangen are required * Preflex sounds * Preflex sounds * Preflex sounds * Preflex sounds * Preflex sounds * Sans solutions mg points rging points
To more slow chappers and less fee Managing two chappers and less fee B. Managing two chappers at the sa B. Deficient charging points retwo Charging closeful instantion is a peo- Charging points for charging High prices for charging High prices for charging Charging points network (Noses) : Charging points network (Noses) : The charging points network (Noses) : The charging the charging point in side Charging points network (Noses) : The charging the charging point in side Charging points network (Noses) : The charging the charging point in side Charging points network (Noses) : The charging the charging points in S. Chargers and superchargers in S. Tobac dan tamefer the P10 to the R. The increases of the anount of R. Card as a preferred paying tot S. Charger parking loss in free pa	I chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettow law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVIs purchasing. More fact or blem in it is cold or name as for EIn. as it a key factor menural charging point	rartiart takes mores tan haif an hour wagen on the other plug hwagen are required the
To more slow chappers and less fee Managing two chappers and less fee B. Managing two chappers at the sa B. Deficient charging points retwo Charging controls Charging controls There is no a good solution whe S. Better separations of particular Mathematics network (Mosed) : Charging points network (Mosed) Partitive sepects: Charging points network (Mosed) : The charging network (Mosed) : The	It chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettion lag, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVI purchasing. More fact of line in it is cold or naim as for EIN. a it a key factor memorial charging point	ertiet tales mores tan half an hour wagen are required R ₁ = - Profiler examine the frequine examine Profiler examine the frequine examine Profiler examine the frequine examine Profiler examine the frequine examine profile examine the frequine examine examine profile examine the frequine examine examine examine examine profile examine the frequine examine exami
To more slow chargers and less fee Managing two charges at the sa B. Managing two charges at the sa B. Deficient charging points inteed Charging points 1. Charging charful 2. Lack of standarization for charge 1. There is no a good solution whe 1. There is no a good solution whe 1. There is no a good solution whe 1. Charging at home or at the office Charging points entwerk (Mosel) : 1. Charging at home or at the office CONCLUSEONS (JR) (GERMANY) Pasitive agents: Charging points entwerk (Newel) : 1. The charging setwork (Reed) : 1. The charging setwork is unified 2. Control the charging point in 3. There are fast charging points 3. Charging fast free a coperator 3. There are fast charging points 3. Charging the transition is unified 3. Schargers and superator 3. Schargers and superator 3. Schargers and superator 3. Charging parking lates in free points 3. Schargers and superator 3. Charging parking lates in free points 3. Charging parking lates in free points of 3. Charging parking lates in free points 3. Charging parking lates in fre	I chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettow law, if a TISA is charging you cannot ch rig this fact restrains. IVIs purchasing. More fast c often in it is cold or name is for Ellis is in a key factor measure charging point	seriet tales mores tan half an hour wagen on the other plug hangen are required * Profiles exactly * P
7. More slow chappers and less fee Managing two chappers and less fee 8. Managing two chappers at the sa 8. Deficient charging points retwo 10. Charging closeful 11. Charging closeful 12. Lack of standarization for charging 13. High prices for charging 14. There is no a good solution whe 15. Better spanitation of parking in 16. Charging points network (Mosed) : 10. Charging points network (Mosed) : 11. There are fait charging point in 12. Charging points network (Mosed) : 13. There are fait charging point in 14. Charging points network (Mosed) : 15. The charging betwork is sufficie 16. Charger and superstanting point in 17. Those can tamafer the P10 to the 18. The increase of the ansount of 19. Canton tamafer the P10 to the 19. The increase of the ansount of 10. Canton tamafer the P10 to the 10. Canton tamafer the P10 to	I chargers at supermarkets, huying at the super- mettow law, if a TISA is charging you cannot ch ri; this fact restrains. EVs purchasing. More fact colors in the cold or name is to cold or name is to cold or name is to EVs. in a key factor menual charging point	rartiart takes mores tan haif an hour wagan are required Nr = - Pheffree available in tragetime search Pheffree available in tragetime search Sentoution region points reging points
	It chargers at supermarkets, huying at the super- mentione (e.g. 14 TISA) is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. EVII purchasing. More fact of line in it is cold or naim as for EIN. as it a kny factor memorial charging point	ertiet tales mores tan half an hour wagen are required R ₁ = - Profiler exactly & legaline exactly Profiler exactly & legaline exactly S435_ S435_ S435_
To more slow chargers and less fee Managing two charges at the is a B. Managing true limitation is a ped Charging points instead Charging points Charging points Charging points Charging points miture(i) Charging points Char	It chargers at supermarkets, buying at the super- mettow law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of ric this fact restrains. IV's purchasing. More fact or blem in the cold or name as to cold or name as to follow in the cold or name so for this is a superfactor measure charging point	serbet takes mores tan half an hour wagen are required R _s = - = = = = = = = = = =
	It chargers at supermarkets, huying at the super- mettow law, if a TISA is charging you cannot of rig this fact restrains. IV's purchasing. More fact or blem in the cold or name is for this at a sky factor measure charging point	serbet takes mores tan half an hour wagen are required R _s = - = = = = = = = = = =
To More slow chargers and less fee Managing two charges at the is Managing two charges at the is Deficient charging points retwo Compring time limitation is a per Compring time limitation is a per A that is not a good solution whe Market of Standardscher for charging High prices for charging High prices for charging A that is not a good solution whe Market of standardscher of parking Lowrying at home or at the office Concountstores the office Market of the second of the second of Concountstores (bit) (GERMAANY) Market of the second of the second of Concountstores (bit) (GERMAANY) Market of the second of Concountstores (bit) (GERMAANY) Market of the second of Concountstores (bit) (GERMAANY) Market of Concountstores (bit) (GERMAANY) Concountstores (bit) (GERMAANY) Concountstores (bit) (bit) (bit) Concountstores (bit) (bit) Concountstores (bit) (bit) Concountstores (bit) Concountstores (bit) Concountstores (bit) Concountstores (bit) Concountstores Concountstores (bit) Concountstores Concountstores (bit) Concountstores Concount	I chargers at supermarkets, huying at the super- mentione lag, if a TISA is charging you cannot of rig this fact restrains. EVI purchasing, More fact of lean in it is cold or name as for EIns as a lay factor memoral charging point	nartiart takes mores tan half an hour hargen are required Re =









e^{renomosa}



















4 ==

4 **

CONCLUSIONS IN

Nere are no major efferences among countres. • In both Norway and Germany the average register freeback on intracounture in 50%, indicating that there are many areas for

- In both Nave ay and carrier any set among the integrative concentric is fugure. TVN
 In the case of dyawn, the percentage at negative concentric in fugure. TVN
 The percentage of negative comments when basing about electric vehicles is higher than that of positive comments. Spain
 If the percentage of negative comments when basing about electric vehicles is higher than that of positive comments. Spain
 If the twee countries agree on the need to improve an the tollowing topics:

eneral improvements and to facilitate the installation of the EV changing system at home, In general, many corribute a great unbanning a struct the baselits of the destric vehicle, real autonomy and vehicle. Factors at a a baseline the sequences of them. Be 1

- In general, hence constrained a great underweisig a should be baselitis of the electric vehicle, that autoreamy and means factors act as a baser in the acquisitors of these. There is a great last of these ledge advectors VE sharping registers, topology, compatibility, here it works, how it is paid, etc. All users agree on the meants to be advectors VE sharping registers, topology, compatibility, here it works, how it is paid, etc. All users agree on the meants to be advectors VE sharping registers, topology, compatibility, here it works, how it is paid, etc. All users agree on the meants to be advectors VE sharping registers of works, the fact reduces the memory of potential users to those who are howned with there ave or community garding (with resolutions). There is a fact of training (knowledge of professionals who sell and report effective vehicles, Lack of inceretives and add to install EV charging registers at home or community participy, metaleng EV charges in 0 control by parally is a difficult.
- ł

- Exemple properties: More internation about EV benefits, resolution of frequent doubts.
- Nove intervalues have the public and private sector.
 System that public sects in the use of the electric vehicle charging reflectric, manage the planning, use and payment of the service in a sufference way.
 Public car pakers lots for EVIs, the facilitating charging in urban veise.
 Womitives or alignization for comparisons set up exclusive areas for EVI charging.

CONCLUSIONS (III)

To improve the EV charging intrastructure (on reute, away from heater:

- 1. There are in any different operators in each country Unified icading rythm, incompatibilities in access and payment methods. Controlly, users need different subscriptions, cards and keychains to bavel with their CV within a country and between
 - 2. Lask of maintenance, poor white of prevervation, exper-By it; the free EV of

 - Least of maintenance, poor state of preservation, represently in the first EV charging inflationary.
 Lines of maintenance, poor state of preservation, and be able to the ball to the state a reservation.
 There is a commutator processing and the state of the state of the state a reservation.
 There is a commutator processing and an end to have a state of the state of th

tek proposition

- Bytem that guides users in EV charging points, managed in an unified way, planning, use and payment, improvement, of the EV charging point network.
- More charging points in the EV fixed increases.
 More fast charging points in roots, and billion distribution i
 detay maintenance.
 Provide/or regulating powers and time of EV charging po
 Units adon at access systems, compatibility, payment, etc.
- More fast charging points on coole, and befor dominated by each lentiting detail maintenance.

- TALK MERI
- Price regulation

4 == CONCLUSIONS (III) **Urb an Medicity Vehicles** For UNIVs, the one with the most positive aspects / summerts is the statistic bidgets (if y and y taliunes.

- Firms urban parking tota for taken, and execting in objective with imarging p rits (b) overcomit the charging at home or work). Firms until in parking only to taken and electrics in body place with integrap points (to overcom Green in take antion, which parking only to the park electric methorspice) (and thy) More electric dake and scotter lander, and suber taken. Prat charging points well distributed throughout whom and read areas Possible of an autograp be stand for charging points, evaluation, excupancy and conserv- Standardoot integrap points for all third, including a single- and relate parket parkies of Standardoot integrap points for all third, including a single- and relation parket parkies.
- enotion status in a reliable way.



CONCLUSIONS (W)
 button of chargies and typology (by country)
 Hereign compared to Germany and Span, is the one with the incod charging points and connectors per inhabitant, in Norway, the TESLA (Register in the country with tess charging points. Regarding connectors, there are an much as in Germany, but spread over iess charging points. In conclusion, in Spent these are transported by the connectors, there are an much as in Germany, but spread over iess charging points. In conclusion, in Spent these are transported by convectors but poorly distributed, and twe fast charging (such as the TESLA superchargen) is conclusion, in Spent these are transported by poorly distributed, and twe fast charging (such as the TESLA superchargen) is general, there is an unequal distribution of charging points all invanid each county. The Interest example is Span, element bringing point are concentrated in the north of the county (their) value and Classifical, in other areas and industrialized areas. In Norway the registed concentration in the north of the county (their) value and Classifical distribution/throughout the bendory.
Texte antigenetis
-
 EV Improvements EV Improvements Magnetical and provide that addressly is too, given that there are no intrastructures that provide service on make High price compared to Consider that addressly is too, given that there are no intrastructures that provide service on make High price compared by second by second contexts, compared to internet fiving, termsy with ICE or nyorite. Compare the fact that IDVs are need, other college are internet, watch as where, Making, Mr. Variability in conversible according to different approximate of the topic, speed, antivier temperature, etc. Technic of problems or breakedware in therapers and lotteres. Entrop deparations
 CONCLUSIONS (V) EV improvements Magnetic consider that autonomy is low, given that there are no infratoric tares that provide service on made. High press we need many family car provide the autonomy is low, given that there is no my autonomy in CC or rights. These we need many family car provide by electric endage, compared to interest. These we need many family car provide by electric endage, compared to interest. Compared to the first Well Kins are needs, down in infratorial submits in the road, speed, antivert temperature, etc. The low is previous or interactiones in the roads we in the road, speed, antivert temperature, etc. The low is previous or interactiones in the roads we in the road, speed, antivert temperature, etc. Tactive is previous or interactiones. Last of energing previous informations:



Annex 5: Survey's results report





USER-DI 1.1. Sample of EV Driver · The total lample is the SBB EV warrs The sample is geographically concentrated in the capitals of the smonthles included. The sample is distributed among 6 exectles: Holand, Germany, Hangary, Raly, Norway and Spain. The North of Europe (United and Norway) is the U6,3%. Berlin. Capitals of the securities (molect) As used, as more industrially developed and richer The North of Europe (United and Norway) is the U6,3%. The percentage of men is 62% and of women 39%. of sample. The Nigher percentage of even than weenen stands out in Hungary, Nerway and Germany. T216 of the sample is between 28 and 45 years old, and 5610 less than 25 years old. · Central Durage (Sermany and Hungery) is the 41,8% of sample. . The South of Europe (staty and lipsing is the 40,5% of Sample. The sample is not shattfied (nother by prodec, nor spc, nor geographic distribution), therefore the representation in forms of gender and age and geographically distributed according to the Dr driver profile. sample. (a) BNI Pre-Compare the sample of IV and ICIV drivers: Countries in which the differences between even and warmen increase with IV: mungary, Germany and Network On the contrary, countries that reduce the different between men and women with EV. Spain and Kaly + EV drivers are more youngers than KEV drivers.









187 (FED000064)





17. State 19. State 1















					US	KR-	e,
	Frequency of use:	-	<u>1</u>	Town of the local division of the local divi		-	
1.2. Profile of EV drivers. Type of vehicle, frequency of use	Internal contraction and to tell on Space Read. gazzited Autore witche Endite witche	ILAN ILIN AIR	10.105 10.105 11.05	18,40%) 18,40%)	1.47114	1991	
and type of property	Exercise and a second sequences of a second	ALLER ALLER ALLER	14.10 0.40 0.40	17,34%	LANSIA ANY	100	(R) (
	Property:		1	11	The second	ar intent	200
	Normal cardination angles vehicle (gat, Parol, gate Robel Cardination Table and and the Indexed cardination angles materialities	2	11.4470 11.1114 11.1114 11.1114	11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0	日本の日日	2223	
	Dart's link, electric scores, electric moduranda		11.100	-	-	-	-

















N			USER-D
	5.denite	11.75	COLUMN A
	Economical Scion	12.44	1000
	(steril	1000	0000035
	Easyltinet	CONTRACTOR OF	0111112
	Driving cumbrit.	RECEPT	
1.3. Best aspects of the	Statements to be accelerated	FILLS .	100
electric vehicles	Charging the car at home	Elsen.	100 million (199
Contraction and success and the	Carecerse	ALC: NOT	1000
Hand, send the fact append of the sender of the	inter interest	REN .	
	Factoriester	602 ·····	1000
	Software .	100	1 1 1 14
he he	Lagitier to mile	11	
	Nor Nor	E.C. Statements	10000
	Series/	Beating	1000
the loss of the second se	6-statie	R	























22,020,000



























8	O age gover this compations, perfer serve at		USER Of
1.7. SERVICE FEATURES	Building during distance information	Real Property lies	
all sentice reviewes	Factories and a competence of the	RIFLIN	
Which an other manifolds on all the particupped and an playing	Proper tex internet of their a linear price	PLTTP	
and a	erricke inters mehilis has been approximately a far Land Flactic Version	11727	
	Committee data of the provision	82321	
	From walking	RENT OF THE	
	Parlament.	100	and the state of the state
	burning charging printerior allows	ATA .	
and the second se	Rends attricted a charging trough middle are	1	the second s
	Drailer in the straight paint	100	and the second states
	These schemester at these stations	11	
	Dynamic tanigation to charging point	11	111111111
	Test sharps at minimarching		100000000
	Wahigita ful be inarphy print	10	
	Total charge at maximum per article of service at any	Pilling and	and the second second
THE REAL PROPERTY OF THE PARTY	Faultie programming to charging conditions	1011 C	and the second
the second secon	Chur	The second	2

















· increase the amount of fast charging points in public parking lots (20.2%)

(a) (a)

























	and the second sec	USER-OF
1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE - APPs	Test Test	1000
What is the charging law set use?	Decharters	
12	tiv there EN	0.000
4.2	Chalgeren St.	0.000
****	¢u/wax 🎫	
Rate of App	Pogelary	01002
THE CAR ATT WAS TRANS	anty	10.00
	Pugurtig	111111
	Jana pana	tion in the second
	Ave Contraction of the	and a second
10	ferta 1 Talance and a state	10100
	a. Minternation	120,000
		USER-DH
1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE		
Central Europe South of Europe		
4)0 4,30	409 (1.00	
North of Europe 3.00 12	- MI	
18	10 10	
1.00		
10		
128 138 138		
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 Princeto (cher per up) hat fit opinion of the fit has fit is the fit opinion of the fit is	ingene here engen here enge	4
128 128 128 128 128 129 Teacherichterstering Betrie einer of St. Anstructure der gebrunden Betrie einer St. Betrie beiden der gebrunden Betrie beiden Betrie beiden der gebrunden Betrie beiden der gebrunden Betrie beiden Betrie beiden der gebrunden Betrie beiden der gebrunden der gebrunden	etti oftis. Anotis antig tisa. Anotis andig 40 Anotas inter anato antiographic antigatis.	
1.26 1.26 1.26 1.26 1.26 Printed in the process of the printer of the first of the process of the process of the first of the printer of	ning yets	-
1.5 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 Printed as the process of the second of th	ning of the	
1.8 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9	nity of the Now the senting time	
18 19 19 19 19 19 19 18 CHARGING EXPERIENCE	ann, dra. Ina ris anny ris — An dr a dy an Anna ann ann ann an Anna Anna Anna ann ann ann an Anna Anna Anna	(SEF 0)
1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE	entra etter, han ette anning tijn, hen der auch af innen ante lenger under ante lenger anning an	
1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE		
1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE 1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE 3.9 4.0	and the second s	.8
1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE 1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE 3.9 4.0 *****	3.6 3. ****	.8
1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE 3.9 4.0 *****	any of Rate the waiting Rate the formation of the second s	.8 * 1
1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE 1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE 3.9 **** Rate the adequacy of the charging points used: Rate the subgraphics the pluga	and the second s	.8 * 1. 1 about your harge
1.8. CHARGING EXPERIENCE 3.9 ***** Rate the adequacy of the charging points used:	and the second of the second o	e quality of about your harge

, GROCEDOR G.















.....















B.	12		5.	USER-DI
	1 Basteria to use	155%		
	Euclarione	124100	a training	inter i
	Kena to ane	25161		1000
	fairer t	(DATE)		uma I
	No emissions to the tocal environment	(DATE: N	and printing of	en P
Results: Best aspects of the	Charging the car al horte	1875.		
electric vehicles (ICEV)	Driving combet	115%		100
and the second second	figload	100	111111100	1992
Person, deligit the deal pagents of the smaller's whether in	Fant societation	18%		100
presidences of \$2	Conscience	ars.		1000
Now PLANNER &	Bothess.	100	COLUMN T	100
A CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER	Lighter to rice	17%		
A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	No.	13%	ere erenini	1000
	Gentlety	12%		
	Pelak	11%		1000
	Other (pleases specify)	1976		

1990-2063

















and Georgean





		89.5% of a	he electrical vehicle (XV) driven al-	to drive light
Sample of LEV		fuel vehicle	e drivers.	ine case or
sample of LEV				
inter (to be new addressing of report	liferene, chec estructule;	
10,04				
NO.	50.05	69,5%		
9129	1		54.6%	
10.00	-		45,455	
10.00	5 19,6%	30,0%		
- 128	202	01	Teni	




















Annex 6: Co-creation's results report

		USER-D
Index		
1. METHODOLOGY AND CHARLENGES	1	
2. REM 175 - IERAS		
REMATE - Challenge 1. Charging menagement	5	
RESULTS - Challengy 2. Mattern of the future	5	
RESURTS - Challenge T. New sharping methods	1	
3. CONCLUSIONS	13	





















a secondaria da





















_1477 (AB0000083